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Great Academies Education Trust
Trustees’ report for the Year Ended 31 August 2023

The Trustees present their atnual teport together with the financial statements .and auditors' report of the
charitable company for the year ended 31 August 2023, The annual report serves the purposes of both a trustecs'
report, and a. directors’ report and a strategic report under company law,

"The Academy Trust operated three secondary academies and one primary uciademy in the Nopth West during the.
vear. The academies-have a combined pupil capacity of 3,870 ranging from 3t 16 years.old and had a.roll of
3,666-in Qctober 2023,

.Structure_, governance and managemerit
Constitution

The Academy Trust is a company mited by guarantee (company number 06237630) and an éxempt charity.
'The charitable ‘company’s memorandum and articles of association dated April 2007 ds aménded December
2016 and- September 2020 are the primary governing decuments of the Trust, The Trustees of Great Academiis
Education Trust are also the diréctors ofthe charitable company for the purposes. of company law. Details of the
Trustees who served during the vear and the dates these accounts are approved are included in. the Reference:
and Administrative Details on pages | and 2, The four academies Within the Academy Trust during the financial
year are Great Academy Ashton, Copley Academy, Middleton Tethnology School and Silver Springs Primary
Academy.

Members' liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of'thie charitable company in the
event .of it being wound-up while they are a member, or within one year after-they cease to be 2 member, such
amount as may be required, not exceeding £10. for the debts and Tiabilities contracted before they ceased to.bea
membuer:

Trastees' indennitios

The Academy Trust is a member of the Départment for Educafion. tisk protection amangement (RPA) which
includes risk protection. for Governors Liability with a liability imit of £10m,

Method of recruitment and appointment or election of Trustees

The Academy Trust currently has seven Trustees who may appoint committess to be known as Local Governing
Commitiees for cach Academy. The constitution, membership and proceedings of any committee shall be
deterimined by the Trustees. Appointments will be in accordance with the Trust’s Memoraindum and Articles of-
Association and Governor Recruittment Policy.

The menibers may appoint up Lo nine Truslees and any nuimber. of stalf Trusiees so long as the number does not
exceed one third of the total number: The Trustees may alse vo-opl up g three Trusicds onig (e Board..

Trustees with the appropriatc. skills and cxperience are sought out to ensure a good balance of knowledge and
expertise on the Baard. The Academy Trust uses a combination of the external recruitiment advisors and on-iing
adverts to atfract suitable candidates.

Policies and procedures adopted for the induction and training-of Tristees

A flexible induction procéss takes place wking into account the skills and experience of the Trustee but
includes, as a minimum. mectings with the Chair of the Board. the-Clerk and the Chairs and Principals of cach
Academy and a day within. the organisation spending tinte in' each of the academics.

Trustees réceive no remuneration or benefits in respect of their duties as Trusfees but are reimbursed for
expenses incurted in carrying out theéir duties. During the-vear, 1he Trugtees held six. Trust Board meetings.

Pagc-ﬁ







Great Academies Education Trust

Trustees' report for the Year Ended 31 August-2023 (continued)

Ovrganisational striicture

The Trustees meet at least four times a-year to receive feporis and naniage. ity stratégic objectives, In addition fo
the Triist Board. there are Trustee subcommittees for Finance and Resources; Audit anid Risk, Outcotnes, SCITT
and Pay and Remuneration, These subcommittees meet to review anid discuss key-argas in more detail and make
recommendations 10 Trust Board. Hach acadermay lias a local governing committee which operites as o
sub-committee ol the Trust Board.

The day-to-day management s ‘delegated io the Chiet” Exceutive Officer and the Principals who are each
supported by a-Leadership Team. The scheme of delegation. clarifies those decisions that must be referred to the
Trustees, '

Arrangements for setting pay uid remuneration of, key manggement personmel.

Each local goveming committee has a pay sub-commnitice to agree the decisions of the Principil with regard to
iher local staff and the Academy Trust has o Reinuneration Commitiee which is responsible for setting the pay
and remuneration of the Trust’s senior managers and Principals (key managenient personnel). The Committce
consists.of two Trustees.

Conuected orgariisations, including related party velationships

The Academy Trust works o advance, for public benefit, the education of all pupils within' out ‘acaderizg.
Working with the Department for Education (DfE), Education and Skills Funding Ageney (ESFA); Rochidale
arid Tamesidé Local Awhorities; Tameside Sports Trust (Active Tameside), local primary schools and other
local organisations to.establish links with the local Community.

Trade wenion facility time

The Academy Troust does not employ any trade union representatives, instead this service is provided via the
lacal authority.

Engagement with employees. {including disubled personsy

Communications _

Great Acaderies Education Trust has 513 employees the majority working 1n-the four academics in the Trist.
Much of the communications with employces in ¢ach .ot the schools conies through: the senior leaders-in that
school. The Principals of the schools attend-regular meetings with faembers of the Trust Executive Team where
relevani information is shared and so they can cascade information as appropriafe-to their staff.

The Trust produces a fortnightly newsletier {n order to communicate with emplovees..

The Trust las a number of network groups which bring together those in the schobls with particular roles und
miembers of the Trust Execitive Team. This enables staif share ideas and chillenges and 10. enilaburate on
solutions. aind new projecis. It also enables rélevant information 1o be communicated by the Executive Tean.
members both to and.fram these gioups:

Egual opportunities _

The Trustees récognise that equal opportunities should be an.integral part of good practice within the workplace.
The Academy Tiust aims ‘to esiablish equal opportunities in all areas of its activities: including creating a
working environment in which the conteibution and needs of all peopleare fully valued.. '
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Great Academies Education Trust
Trustees" report for the Year Ended 31 August 2023 (continued)

Disabled persons

The Academy Trust welcomes ‘applications from candidates with o disability. Applicants. arc advised to.contact

HR if they have any specific requirements to énabie them w0 apply.

Selection panels are not provided wilh information about whether candidates have's disability at the shortlisting
stagie, as.'the. equal opportunities monttoring information is removed prior to shoetlisting takivy place. New'
starters complete a Tigalth questionnaire which enables the Trust and academies .to assess ‘whether any
adjustments.are needed (o-the working environmerit.

The Trust makes. use of zin occupational Nealth provider. ‘Any emiployee can request selfbreferral, and the

‘academies make regular referrals, most ofteri for staff retumning to. work after a period of sickncss absence, bu

also for employees who may be encountering difficulties at work, either due to o disability or due to other
reasons, The academies endeavour to act on the advice. provided wherever possilile and will consult with the
cinployee to ensure reasonable adjustments are provided.

Disabled employees are entitled 1o the same opportunities for training, development and promotion as other-
employees.. Opportunities for promotion are advertised within the academy, and statf wishing. o be. considered
would be entitled to the same adjustments as candidates. coming for interview and to have other adjusiments
consideréd, thus ensuring there are no barriers-to-their promotion,

The Trust purchases an eiployee assistince scheme [rom 'Wes'tf“ield _Hca'l_i_h-Ltd, wliich provides a1 range of
benefits including counselling and money lowards rodtine health appointments (for cxample dental .or optical).
Consultation and seeking views

The Academy Trust recogniscs and regulatly consults with & number of twrade unions for both teaching and
non-téaching $taft: Regular! schieduled meetings are held with full fime . union officials, rnd both the Acadsmies
and the trade union representatives also request additional meetings whenever ihie need arises. In addition to
consuttation witly full tnie. officials, local meetings are also held with the internal representatives both on a
regular scheduled basis and on-an ad hoc basis as required.

Consultation ajso takes place through staff events, staff questionriaires dud & genetal culture of leaders. being
available and open lo swalT feedback.

A staff survey has been conducted annually over the past three years with results constdered at Trust and schaol
level. Stututary ‘consultations with appropriate staff wre carried out on key changes such as staff restruciures
staffing changes and planncd pupil ddmission number,

Thie Trust holds Joint Consultative Committee. mectings six times a year for.unioh repregentatives and members
of the Trust executive team to discuss HR matters and policies.

Sharing Trust's performance _

The sehiools. engage staff in discussing information sucly as the educational pefformance of pupils at their school..
Headline performaince informatioi such as Ofsted inspection oulcomes are shared through staff newsletfers: and
this: information along: with ‘other Key information is published online, ¢.¢.. end of key: stage performance and
Trust anmial accounts. '






Great Academies Education Trust

Trustees' report for the Year Ended 31 Angust 2023 (continued)

Engagementwith suppliers, customers and others in a business relationship with the trust

Suppliers
GAET relies on cxternal suppliers for-anumber of key services, As'well 83 béing important for our success, we.
believe that-dealing with supplicrs in the-right way 1s the right thing Lo do.

The Trust actively engages with suppliers through the undertaking of appropriate procurcment exercises,
o1igoing-contract management processes and partnership engagement. The Bourd-spproved Finance Procedures
‘Manual sets out the prociremient rules for the Trust which cnsure that taxpayers' moncy is_ used in ways that are
demonstrably open, fair, and gaod value, [t requires that. all suppliers are given an equal opportunity to seek
business and make competitive offers, and ihat spendiiig choices and decisions ‘are tiansparent and- defensible.

The manval expects good eontract management with suppliers. to boild ind. maintain a strong working
relationship. with the supplier and all with all relevant partners. and stakeholders. checking that the scheduled
gooids, works or services are bicing delivered on lime and to fhe required slandards sel out in the contract,

Parents and carers

The Trust actively engages with parents and carers of pupils -via ‘the individual schools™ comimunications
methads which include.email, text and the use of online platforms such as Schoolcomms aid Dojo. These online
platforms enable quick communication between staff and parents and.one-to-one commanications.

The Trust schools seck parént views via amiual parent questionhaires and engage face to face (or-oniline) with
_ Ry _ 11 part ! . ; £4g0 ] !
Dbarents at parents” evenings and a wide range-of othér schivol evens.

Pupils

Pupil- views are gathered through a variely of roules sucl as pupi! questionnaires, school councils and ddily
communications in ¢lass and in school .in'_gencrai. All of our academics now systematically survey all pupils
bwice a year. At primary level pupils complete # ‘Bounce Together' survey. This is an enlinemental licalth and
avell-being platform. At secondary Tevel all our schools now use Papils Aftiiude to Self and School (PASS)
surveys. This highlights pupils that niay have poor perceptions of themseives aw leariiers and provides uscful
intérvention strategies. ' '

Others in a business velationship with the trust

Three of bur academies are within: the Tameside borough and one falls within- Rochdale. The Ttust purchases
some services fram the relevant local antiorities (LA) and has regular meefings: with representatives from these
LA. GAET considers itself"and the' LA to be strategic’partiers in that it works with the LA to develop solutions
to meeting need in our respective boroughs.

Lo “atuing our ubjectives’ and planning our Hetivities the trustees have careﬁi]ly considered the Charity
Commission’s general guidance on public benefit.
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Great Academies Education Trust

Trustees' report for the Year Ended 31 August 2023 {continued)

Objectives and activities
Ohjects dnd aims

The Trust™s objects afe specifically restricted to the following;

Advancing educdtion hy;

* Establishing; maintaining, managing arid developing schools offering a broad-and balanced curriculum

* Promoting the physical, intellectual and social development of all children and young: people, especially: those.
who-are socially and economically disadvaniaged '

+ Developing the capacity and. skills of those who are socially and economically disadvintaged. in such 2 way
that helps meet their-needs and criables them to participate more fully intheir communities. and society 4t large

= Providing reereational and léisure time facilities in ihe interest of social welfare for the, local communitics in.
which. the academies reside; especially those who have need of such facilities by reason of their youth, age,
infitmity or disablement, poveity or social and econiomic circumstances.

‘Qur aim is to provide oulstanding schools to improve the academic achievement of all-our children and young
people and increase their life chances and apportanities for successtul and tulfitled lives as-well-educated future
citizens.

Objectives, strategies and activities

The stategic objectives arg: under five. headings; People; Perfornance: Pupils and communities; structuire,
support and operations: and finance, The objectives of the strategic plain 2022-2025 are summarised below:

Our pupils. and communities .
1. To provide Great Academies’ students with 3 rounded experience including wider achievements and
enrichient.

In addition 1o securing gieat academic ovicomes, we will ensure that all of our students benefit frem and
cxperience a wide catitfement to extra-curficular activity. ‘After consuliting with stakcholders and -drawing on
good practice (Middleton Technology School Eurichment for alf), by August 2024 this will be enshrined iu the
‘Great Academies Charter of Enrichment tor Students™. By August 2023, we will have monitored participation
and have measurable outcomes in terms of stadent wider- extrascurricilar activities. and by 2025, an education
with Great Academies will be synonymous with benefiting froim a rounded and warld-class education:

2. To develop ‘Great Academies in the Community* partnerships with our local communities

By September 2023, we will co-vrdinate the outward facing dimension of cach academy with their focal
community stakeholders including: parent bodies, lacal authorily representatives, partner schools and trusts, the
business communily; und ihird seetor vrganisations, By 2023, all academies will have mriving progrataméy of
engagement with community stakeholders and become inoreasingly recognised as being truly atthe heart of
their communities. '
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Great Academies Education Trust
Trustees' report for the Year Ended 31 August 2023 (continued)

Our perforniance

3. To design and deliver the best possible ¢urriculuim and teaching standards leading to the best outcomes
for all of cur students. _

Our focus will be on curricfum in its broadest scise. covering the chtire experience of the Great Acadcmics’
ediication. -Our- starting point will be the intended design and delivery of our curficulum. We. aiin for our
students to achieve the best possible academic outcomes and to have a broad, rounded éducation experience in
all of vur dcadeniies. All measuies such.as acadeniic outcomes, student arten'danf:c-iand exclusions -data, will
reach-and then improve upon national average data. We will achieve this by systematically implementing cur
school improvement model, including a reléiitless focus on improving the quality of provision in our schools,
and ‘specifically ensuring tedching that is routinely great. W¢ will place a great emphasis on the importance of
literacy -and numeracy, and andértake a- trust-wide approach 1o improving standirds in reading. High levels of
attendance also comes from supportive and caring staff who chsure that an exciting bioad curricilum awaits our
students, In terms of impact and outcomes, our high aspiration is that by Septentber 2023, we will be in the top
20% performing Multi’ Academy Trusts for secondary academies, and Silver Spriigs Primary Acadeniy will be.
i the top 10% nationally inthe DfE primary perforihance tables. This required.an immediate focus from 2022
on curren? Y4 and Y9, and a plan. for-sustained imiprovement with subsequent years. By September 2027, ail of
our long-standing academies will be in"the. top 5% of similar schools. medning that our Multi Academy Trust
will be in the top 5% of similar Multi Academy Trusts. New academiies Joining the Trust will be given
appropriate targets to. support the overall objective for the Trust within a thréc-year period from the point of
joining. All petformance measures will improve on FFT 30, meet FFT 20, and reach FFT S ever this tite.
Where: the. Covid pandémic Tas delayed DfE performance tables in 2020 and 2021, we will continue to
serutinise our academics performanie against 1he most reliable data sets thatl we can source or national average
-data that is published by DfE. '

4, To work towards greater sustainability including a varbon nef zero status

This is 4 mewly introduced strategic objective for the Trust.and will develop dver time. The DFE draft strategy
“sustdinability and. climate change™ was published in November 2021 and a final strategy is expected in April
2022. By Seplemberr 2023 our approach to sustainability will be embedded across the Trust.and we will be’
contributing o the 2030 Sustainability Agenda. We will have reviewed how we teach -about; sustainability; the
environment; climate change: and achieving net zero catbon emissions. We will give our studetits a voicein the
strafegic direction that we take, including school-fevel projects: and competitions. ' We will aim to reduce our
overall Cotisumplion year on year including projects around increasingly su$tainable- tanspoit and improved
estates and ways of working. We will seek involvement for gur students in the national Education Nature Park
& Climate Leaders Award and promote progression into green skills and careers.

Our people _

‘5. To develop and promote staff good health-atid well-being through Chartérs for our people

As we-move out of the 2020-21 two vears of pundemic, we fecognise we-caiv strengthen-our offér to support and
pramote statt well-being anid pood health. Tn 2020, we inmoduced our Hirst trust wide staft survey. which we will
maintain as an annual process sécuring the best possible response rate from staff, We will epswre that we
respond fe and aci-on the main: themes emetrging from staff surveys. By September 2022, we were signed @p-to
the DIE well-being charter -and -ail of our .academies are signed up the -Great Academies - Staff Well-Being
Charter..
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Great Academies Education Trast
Trustees' report for the Year-Ended 31 August 2023 (continued)

Qur finance and resources

6. Fo manage onr finance and rescurces éfficiently to secure and sustain -the best provision -and
opportunities for the tfuture

By Sepiember 2023, curriculum fed financial planning (CLEFP) will be umderstood by all léaders und munagers
and schools will recognise the-imperative to reach balanced income and expenditure ii-year budgets. This will
be supported by monthly financial reports, quarterly Local Governing Corriiitteés and terimly Financial
Accountability Moctings (FAMS). By September 2023, all schools will return a-surplus.of at least 3% of GAG in
order to sustain total reserves of at least 10% of in Year GAG and ¢cnable a strategic estates management and an’
ICT refrésh-progranime,

‘Our Structure, Support and Operations
7. To-develop and provide GAET'S services through ous central structure, support ard eperations:

By September 2023, we will have completed a process of alignment acrosg our academies to cnsure ¢fficient
practices . and protocols are standurdised against agreed practices of excellence, including: cur Great School
Improvement Model, our. finance, HR, governance, cstates and 1CT functions. These will clearly define the.

‘tapacity and bespoke siipport svstenis required by and offered to each current and future academy,

8. To grow the Great Academics Education Trust

We have. identified a pipeline of potential partner schools who ray join our Trust, suppotted by ‘marketing
materialg and a straiégy to engage new prospective partner sehools, We.will be ¢lear on the *Ws' of who, when,
where and why, as'well as ehsuring thal we have the capacity for sensible growth. By September 2024, we will
have at Ieasi three wiore primary’ sthools in our Trust and by September 2025 we-will have developed two
clusters of around 4-6 schools in each of Rochdale and Tameside, with-a view and strategy for growth into other
regional areas in the noith, If our local pattner privsary schools are slow to work with us, we will look for
primary partners further dtfeld, Trustees have also ‘included in the strategic plan, mergers as a prowth
opportunity for the trust. '

Strategic Report

Achicvements and performance
Overview:

Acuaderiic year 2022/23 has continued to pose. several ¢hallenges which have impacted some of the studei
outcomes across the' trust. Our analysis shows thal rates of attendance have yet to gef back (o their pre COVID
levels. Trustanalysis also shows that where pupils aitended for 96+% thor by the end of Year 11 their progress
scores were posilive arid demonstrated added value. Where atlendance was below this, and particularly below
90%; thewn this has a si gnificantly negative impaieton progress overall. In addition io this trusi'and schoot Teaders
underestimated the reset to. 2019 benchmarks and this had an impaet on the aceuracy of predictions i some
schools andfor in gome departmcnts‘_

Cur Academies

Great Academy Ashton (GAAY

During 2022-23, GAA received its latest Ofsted ispegtion. Whilst the overall judgeinent was. ‘Requires
Improvement* there were many aspects and cothments in the report which demonsirated that through effective,
trust and school collaboration several positive comments and iniprovenienis have been noted.

GAAs Aainment 8 is below predictions (36.02 cF40.4) and a targel of 42. This dttainmient & $coré is Jower than

both 2018 and 2019 A8 (39.06 in 20 19} Predictions. in English are particularly below {Lovel 4+) where deaders
predicted 171.6 but achieved. 60.1.
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Great Academies Education Trust
Trustees' report for the Year Ended 31 August 2023 (continued)

At Level 5 the' gap between English ‘predicted and actual was narrower {actual 42.2 predicted 47.1). in
mathematics there were less significant ditTerences it both Levels 4 and 5 Sefween predicted and actuals.

English and Maths combined results are showing reasonable correlation, with the correlation gap at. G5+ being
in tine. with national at -6%,-and slightly below natinaf at 4+ at -8%. Maths was- the Hmniting factor it both
grade: boundaries, which follows the nationat pattern. There are promising signi of impravement in.rélatiods

bath attendance and behaviour currently.

Copléy Academy (GA) _ _

Copley Academy continues to make progress and outcomes in 2023 show o trend of improvement since 2019,
Particutarly impressive. has been Tww ‘well pupils huve dchidved overall in voeational subjects including heafih
and social carc, Mathematics, which for-some time has underperformed, is showing an improving trend and
tising outcomes. '

Although Copley's Ataitimeni § {36.60) is below predicted (41.0) and.target of 45, therc is 2 good trajectory of
accelerating improvement now evident in Cepley Acadeniy's autcomes from 2019, 2022 to 2023 of over 0.3.
This Altainmient § score is slightly Tigher than both 2618 and 2019 (34.38 in 2019) and therefore shows some
improvement, '

This'is alst-a siimilar piclure for attainment ai Level 4 in mathematics (rose [rom 49 in 2019 to 56.4) however
there was a decline from 2019 in English 4t Level 4 (61 ef 56.4) and at Level 5 (23 ¢I'20.9) in En slish, Based on
provisional progress information-this may ‘indicate 4 Progress § score of -0.67 {in which similar pupils wiih
similar starting points in other schools did over halfa grade better than those in Capley).

Pupils” attainment in English (Level 4) was below that predicted (56,4 compareil 10 2 predicted of 67) and at
Level 5, with a predicted of 40 compared to an actuu] of 30. A& similar picture is. seen i mathemuitics in which
Level 4 predictions were inaceurate (71 ef 56.4) and at Level 3 with prediction of 40 ¢fan actual of 27.3.

English & Maths combined results have less correlation, patticularly at G4+, English Ga+ is 56.4%_ maths G4+
is 56.4%, combined is 44.5%, -11.9% below the individual subjects. At G5+ the gap i5.-6.4%, the:national gap is
normally approximalely 5%. Maths was the Timiting factor at G5+, but there weré equal numbers of students
only getting Eaglish-or maths buf not at G+,

Middleton Technology School (MTS)

MTS was inspectéd by Ofsted in March 2019 and graded as Good, Attzinmertt & {44.19) is close to the predicted

-(45) and target of §1. This attainment 8 score.is slightly lower than both 201%-and 2019 (4741 in 2019).

Attainment at Level 4-in mathematics and Englistt was very closé to' latest predictions.
English: Language results are just in-line willi narional ot G7+, G5+ and G+, but Eng'l'i_sh Literature results are
well below national. English is th¢ weakest arco of Progress 8 results. Based on provisional progress’

other sé]mulssdfd over one third of o grade betler than thiese jit MTS).

information thiy muy indicated a Progress.& seare of -0.34 {in which similar pupils with similar starting points in.

Pupils™ aitainment in Bnglish (Level 4) was similar to that predicted (67.4 compared to-u predicted of 68.1) and.

at Level 3, with a predicted of 43.3 ‘comparcd to.an acwml of 48.1. A similar picture. is seen in mathenatics in

which Level 4 predictions were broadly aceurate (72.6 prediction of 70,4y and at Level 5 with prediction of §1.9
cf an actual .of 5¢.0.
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Great Academies Education Trust
Trustees' report for the Year Ended 31 August 2023 (co_ntinued_).

This suggest that: _

» Teachers within English and mathematics have a ‘better undersianding. of how well their pupils are attaining
against GCSE measures of Level 4 and 5. '

* Despite some lower levels of Year L1 attendance (that did imiprove), inferventions and support appear to have
been more successful. ’ '

“MTS-are more effective it Helping boys achjeve,

Silver Springs Primary Academy (SSPA)

SSPA most recent inspection in-2022 saw the schow Judged as Good in all aspects of the i_nspcgliqn framework..
Outcomes in carly years, phonics and key stage | overall show pusitive irénds and comparisons (o national
averages.

In Tarly Yeidrs challenging fargefs were met, apart from in Writing and Comniunication and Lanauage ‘where
targets were broadly met ahd results were above the Easter prediction, which is testament to the responsive
approach to targeted intervention that Reception staff have developed. GLIY was in line with the National
average as were Reading and Writing.

‘The Year | phonics screening check saw an actual of 75% compared fo 2 target of 80%. School analysis.shows
that many pupils achigved Rl marks on the screening ¢heck. However, recent arrivals to Year | {x 10) have
reduced the ‘overall total down, Wlicn leaders take these new arivals oul of the data set, the school schicved
targets set. Overall combined expected and greater depih are at least as good as targe(s sei.

At Key Stage 1, ]Gélde-l"&i have pm\f}idcd':datﬁ-fo‘r the fuli-cohort alongside shadow data which takes iﬁm.accouni

the impact of new arrivals: Overall, this shows that children in Key Stage 1 achicved broadly in fine for

‘matheniatics {at both expected and greater depth). For writing children were overall bigadly in line {af both

expected and greater depth). However, children did less well in reading (at expected and gredter depth).

Key Stage 2 outcomes indicate that reading will be the key drea for further focus and development for this
academic year, The key. arcas are in-reading and miathematics. As a resuli of Tower outeomes in teading and

‘mathematics, this has had a negative impact-on the overall combined suicomes as well,

Going concern

Afler making appropriste enquiries, tite Trust Board has a reasonable expectation that the Academy Trist has
adequate resources to continue for the toreseeable future, For this reason, it continues. to adopt the going concem
basis it preparing the financial statements. Furtlier details regarding the adoption of the going -concern basis can
be found in the Sutement of Acgounting Policies. '

The Trust has aceess to healthy cash reservies. which provide:a high degrree of comfort in the Trust’s ability 53
respond to and tackle any shortfalls in thesé turbulent fimes. This financial resilience will help the schools to
stay flexible and adaptable to unexpecied changes in pupil nimbers and o munage unplanned. costs.

Expenditure of tie schools is dominated by staff costs, nevertheless oppartunifies for reducing costs are
identitied and actioned when possible,

Finanéial projections were compiled and demonstraicd cash resilicnce ‘to the end of FY2025-26. Thesc
projections include confinued capital investment in our estates and 1CT infrastiucture through the strategicuse

ol reserves,

Additionally, it is.considered that, after examining likely future risks to the business, that there will be sulficient

“funds fo cope with any unexpected expenditure, predominantly staff salury costs. For this reason. the, Trustees

have cortinued to.adopt. 4 going-concern basis in preparing the Trust's financial statcments,
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Great Academies Education Trust
Trustees' réport for the Year Euded 31 August 2023 {continued)

Pronotiirg the success of the academy:

Section 172 of the Companies Act: 2006 requires the ‘directors to adt i the way they consider, in good faith,
would be most likely to promete the success of the charity to achieve its.charitable purposes.

The Trustees are committéd to fmproving the outcomes of all our pupils through - the' relentless pursuit of
scholarship and excellence and securing th¢ hest possible outcomes. Our schools- deliver the highest qiality
teaching and learning, are fully compliant within cur pelicy ramework.

We steadfastly believe that our approacirallows ideal goveming committees and academny leadership teams to
focus on the needs of their communities: within a supportive framework. The Trust provides.the underpinning.
systemis, structires, and external nefworks to suppord the. work In our schools, ¢nabling them to prioritise their-
time on the teaching and leaming strategies snd outcomes af their schools,

We deliver effective, progréssive, professional development opportunities for all staff who work within our
schools creating a culfure of success. Succession planiting throtghout the orpanisation is essential {0 ensure ol
‘stindards remain high at-all times.

We cnsure our school environments are fii for purpose and going forward the trust will also ensure consideration

is given to.the environmiental impact whien making decisions with regards to our infrastructure,

As a Trust, we place an importarit émphasis on the professional eonduct of our staff, trustecs, and visitors:and all
abide by a clear framework and policy. This includes being genuine. being aware of equality, Impartiatity, -and
the necd to:act fairly. The. recent equality work within all.onr schools demonstrates the Trust's commitment io
review policy and practice-and be at the forefront of equality practice.

We deliver effective, progressive, professional development oppormunities for afl staff-who woik within" dur
schools creating a culture of suceess. Succegsion planning throughodt the organisation is essential to énsure cur

standards remain higly at ail times.

We ensure our schivol environments-are fit for purpost and going forward the trust will also ensure consideration
is-given 10 the‘environimental impact when making decisions with regards (o our infrastructure.,
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‘Great Academies Education Trust

Trustees’ report for the Year Ended 31 August.2023 (continued).

Financial review
The principal sources: of Tunding for the Academy ‘Trustare grants fromihe ESFA, donations and other external
income. Most of the Academy Trust’s income is obtajned from the ESFA in the form of recurrent granls, the use
of which is vestricted to particular purposes. The grants received from the ESFA during the Year ended 3!
August 2023 and the associated expénditure dre-shown as restricted funds it the statement of financia| activities.

The Academy Trust also receives grants for fixed assets frond the DIE. In accordance, with the Charities
Statement of Recommended Practice, ‘Accounting, and Reporting by Charities” (FRS- 102 SORP), such. grants
are shown in the Statement of Finaneial Activities. as resiricted inconte iin the fixed asset fund generally when
they are awarded, as.set out in the Academy Trust’s accounting policies. In prior vears the value of the land and
buildings occupied by Middleton Technology Schoul, Great Academy Ashion, Copley’ Academy and Silver
Spritigs Primary Academy have all been recognised. The resiricted fixed assel fund balance is reduced by drinual
depreciation charges-over tlie eéxpected usefil life ol'the assels concerned,

No voluntary donations were teceived from refated ‘parties in the éurreni year (20221 nil}. £2;000k permanent
endowment fund and other cash not required to meet day to day runining expenses is invested in shori-term
deposit uccounts with the Academy’s banks, Interest received on these deposits was £46k coinpared to £6k o
the previous year,

During the Year ended 31 August 2023, total expendituie exceeded income by £31,922k (2022 '£_3_,5."l'3k. net
expenditure). This included depreciation charges on land and buildings of £2,276k (2022: £1,943k). The deficit
on tofal funds in the vear was £381k (Surplus in 2022: £15,189k). This surplus was including an actuarial gain

on defined beneﬁ_l ob]i’gations-'p'f'ii] S41%(2022: £17,702K).

“The resulis for the year cxch:diﬁ_g FRS182 peusion adjustments. and depreciation wasa surplus ol £747k-{2022>

£151%). This is a stre gperformance particularly in light of the significant cost pressures experienced within the
Academy Trust and the sector.

Non-teaching statf are members of the Local Government Pengion Scheme {LGPS}. The asset/{deficit) as.at 31

August 2023 is £ nil (2022: (E1.148k). Middleton Technology School remained pooled with' Rochdale

Mefrdpolitan Borough Council upon cenverston -and therefore employer contribution  rates for MTS.
non-leaching staff (20.5%; differ from the rest of Great Academies Education Trust.{]8.6%).

‘The Academy held fund balanecs at 31 August 2023 of £63,394k comprising £2.000k Permanent Endowment

F_u_ﬁ_d_, £3.441k Unrestricied Fund, £57.808k Restricted Fixed Asset Fund, £145k Restricted General Fund and &
pension reserve defieil of £nil.

'I‘h'c:"At:adcm_y'- Trust monitors cash flow:and prepares financial forecasts 1o antii:ipatc-and 111:_1nu_g:.'f'nmncial risk
and meet. tinancial ebjectrves,
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Great Academies Education Trust

Trustees’ report for the Year Ended 31 August 2023 (c‘ontinued)_

Reserves policy

The Trustees review the reserve levels.of the Academy Trust annuaily and before the approval of- strategic use

-of these reserves, This teview: encompasses the hature of incomé and éxpenditure stréams, the need to match
;income with comimitments and the nature-of reserves.

The Trustees have:deiermined that the uppropriate level of general reserves should be equivalent . 10% of
GAG ineomic. The reason for this is 10 provide suificient working Ldplld] Le cover delays between spending and
receipt of grants and 1o provide a coshios to deal with unexpected emergencies stch as urgent mainienance,
falling student numbers or no-nolice changes in schools funding methodology. Variances to the appropriate 16%.
target are closely monitored. Balances higher or lower then this target are expected to be supported by
appropriate spending or recovery plan,

The general reserves balance at the start of fhe vear was higher than the target and therefore to ensure

complianice with this, pohcy the Trust has worked with the académies ta deliver an informed spending. plan,
This has included, but is not limited fo. the investment in a new Building Management: Sy‘;tem {BMS) at Great

Academy Ashton, additional investment in school iriprovement. contribution to the finprovement of vertilation
at Copley Academy (partly funded through CTF}, ¢ontinued investment in the réfresh and teplacement of digital
devices.

Copley Academy has a deficit reserve position at 31 August 2023 (as 2 result of histori ic- falling. pupll numbers

and three yedrs of protected teacker pay following staff restructure} and Trust reserves are. supporting Copley
Academy whilst the financial recovery plan eliiinates. the deficit.

The Trust s current level of tree reserves {total Tunds less the amount lield in fixed assets and restricted and
endowed funds) is £3.441k (2022: £4, 113k}, The balance on this reserve mainly coniprises charitable donaticns
reéceived from Gredt Ne whbour}modq (prumusly rejated to. GAET by virtue of common directors) and is used
to furid developnient of the Trust.

Twvestment pelicy

The Academ}' Trust prefers banking fnstittions that have stiony ethical valués and a low risk prefile. In ovder 16
manage risk whilst maximising returns, deposits are placed with more that one institution. Only those
institufions approved by the Trust Board-are used for: (he. placing of deposits.

Performance Indicdtors:
Thie Trust Board reccive reports on academic and (inancial performance- aiid wanagement at each meeling. Key:
information monitered by the Trust Board and C onimitiées inchudé;

* Thé en-guing work wwards achicving balancéd budgets, approved by the Academy Trust Board dnd reported
on . throughout the year along with regular managément aecounts wnd forecasts (along with assessment of
reserves position to address any m—year deficit budger),
. ’\dandung cash balances - ensuring surplus cash placed on deposit and sufficient available fundé to- meet
aperational needs,
¢ Staff costs as & pergentage of total income less donations which is in line with the target level {78%} of 73% in
2022423 (75%.in° 2021222, ]
- Pupil attendance and behaviourdata for all the acadensies..
» Exam fesolis data including targets and prediciions.
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Great Academies Education Trust

Trustees’ report for the Year Ended 31 August 2023 (continued)

Piineipal visks and uncertainties

The Audit and Risk Committee formally review the risk. register three 1imes a year, the Trust Board forma]ly-
reviews the risk register annually and Key risks are discussed at Trust Board meetings as required. The major
risk$ which face the Trust are reviewed quarteriy by the Executive Teum and appropriate processes and-controls
JDave been implemented. to winimise and manage risk, including an eflective system of internal financial control
which is further détailed in the Governdnce Statement. The.main risks tdcntii“t,d inclhide:

* Stratégic

* People

¥ Financial

* Infrastructure and operations.

The Locil Goverfing Comniitiees receive the school Tisk register three fimies during the year and key risks.are
Hagged in theii-interaction with the Trust sk register and vice versa.

In September 2022, the government issued its Coasting Schools Legislation. This empowered the. DIE to issue
Regulatory Notice warning netices to schools in this category. By virtue of not having been graded:good in their
respeetive last two mspcl.tmns Copley Academy -and Great Academy Ashton are bolh in this category. The
trusiées . Local Governing Commiitees. the Executive Team and school leaders have respondéd positively to the-
sighificant challenge posed by the TIE in executing this process..In March 2023, Copley Academy had a long
standing {since January 2019) Minded to: Terminate notice rescinded and replaced by # Termination Warning
Notice, In July 2023, the trust was.notificd that Great' Academy Ashton would reccive a Tormination Warning
‘Notice. These challenges are-expected to remain ii place for the foresegable futire until the schools achieve the
Ofsted grading of good.

Previously identified, a key risk to the Academy Trustis the ottsourced Facilities Management contract in place
at Great Academy Ashton. This contract is expensive and thé provision of the services has been poor. The Trust
have been working \Uth the parties involved in order to review, monitor and improve the effectiveness and
value Tor money. of the contract.

The Trust also faces the risk of the inability to operate duc 1o rising costs in staffing, energy and inflation linked
«costs. This isk is addressed by a robust financial control system, efficient procurement procedures -and the
ofigoing consideration of efficiency savings,

The on-going. changes in' funding: methodology and associuted reduction in grants received, combined with
Tising staff costs and high fixed cost of the managed service charges for the building at Great Academy Ashion
present unéertainty for the years ahéad:

Finagcially, the. availability of cash.and access to healthy surplus reserves is central fo the Tiust's av ailability to
mitigae the. financial i impaciof (he current.economic-climate.

All academies in the (udl have compleied detailed and robust risk assessments and put in place appropriale
measures to nitigate the H&S risks.and cyber security risks. The Trust is: aumn;, te-obtain tite Cyber Essentinls
certification,

Fundraising

The academy trust does not use azny’ extérnal fundraisers,. All llllldrdlbl]]“ undertaken during. the vear was
monitored by the Trustées,
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Great Academies Education Trust

Trustees' report for the Year Ended 31 August 2023 (continned)

Streamilined Energy and Carbon Reporting

UK Greenhouse gas emiséions and energy use data for the 1 September 2022
period to3t August 2023
[Energy consumption used to-calculate emissions. (kWh) 6,964,087

‘Energy consumption break down (ikWh)

Gas, 4,671,958
Electricity 2275512
Transport fuel -

Scope 't emissions in metric.tonnes CO2e

Oivned transport - mini-buses 0.74
(Gas consumption 85291
Total scope 1 853.63
Scope 2 emissions in metric tennes COZe

Purchased electricity 471.20
Scope 3 emissions in metric tonnes CO2e

Busincss travel in employee-owned vehicles 3.29
Total gross emissions. in metric tonnes €O2e 1328.14

Intensity ratio

Tormes CO2e per pupil . 0.36

Quantification and Reporting Methodology:

1 September 2021
to 31 August 2022

6,633,059

4,276,916
2,345,194
10.940

221
18071
78242

453.51

162
1238.05

0.34

We have followed the 2019 HM Government Envitonmental Reporting Guidelines. We have also used the GHG
Reporim;_, Protocol - Corporate Standard and have. used the 2023 UK Govermment's Converston Factors for

Company. Reporling,

Intensity measurement

The chosen intehsity measurement rdatio is tofal -gross emisgions ‘in metric tonnes CO2e per pupil. the

recommended atio for the SECtor.
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Great Academies Education Trust

Trustees' report for the Year Ended 31 August 2023 (continued)

Plans for futwre periods

Continued installation of LED lighting across the whole frust, with & particular tocus at Great Acad”emy Ashton.
Installation of hew Building Management System (BMS) at Great Academy Ashton,
Tnstallation of energy efficient windows in-Copley Academy as part of significant ventilation Works.

The immediate plans for the Academy Trust continue to be cenired on driving significant improvement in
cducational standards in-all academies.

The Acadenry Trust will continuc to-sirive to improve the performance of all its students and make efforts te
ensure its secondary students successtully secure employment, further education or training upon léaving the
secondary acudemies and its primary students move onta secondary education-with the required numeracy and
literacy skill levels upon leaving. the primary academiy. [n addition to.dcademic achievement, the Academy Trust:
aims 1o ensure that when students Jeave, they take other life skills with them.

Auditor
[hsofar as the Trustees are aware:
*  there is no-releévant audit information of which the charitable company's. auditor is unaware; and

*  the trustees have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves. awarg of any relevant:audit
information and tu establish that the audifor-is aware of that information,

The trustées” report. incorporating s Strateiic Repott, was approved by, order of the wiembers of the Board of
Trustees on 13 December 2023 and-signed on it behalf by:
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Great Academies Education Trust

Governance statement

Scope of responsibility
As trustees, we acknowledge we have owrdll respoasibility for ensuring thiat Greal Aeademics. Bdueation Trost,

has.an effective dnd appropriate system of vontrol, finaneial and otherwise. However such a'system is designed
fo manage rather than €liminate the Fisk of tallure o achieve business objectives, und can provide only
‘reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement orloss.

The Board of Triisteés has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to B Loughran. (.]m.t Execuytive Officer, as

Accounting Officer, for ensuring fibancial contrels conform with the requirements of both pmpricty and poad

finaricial muniagement.and in accordance with the requirements and rebpunmbllzllc‘z assigned to it.in lhe funding
-agreement hetween Great Academies Education Trusiand thé Secretary of State Tor Education. They are also
responsible for reporting to the Board of Trustees:any materinl weaknesses or breakdowns in.interaal coritrol,

‘Goyernance,

The information on governance included here supplements that deseribed in the: Trustcc’s' report and in thic
Statement -of Trustees' Responsibilitics. The: Board of Trustees has formally mei 3 5 times during the year.
Atteridarice during the:ygar at meetings of the Board of Trustees was as tollows:

Me’_eti_'ng:s Out ofa:
‘Trustee attended possible
Christopher Bowes 5 5
‘Catherine Sullivan-Willigms 4 5
Frank Norris 3 5
Paul Jones. {Chair) 3 3
Khalida Kay (resigned 19 July 2023 and appointed as co-opted tnustee 19 )
Tuly 2023). + #
Barbara Daykin 5 5
Stephen Griffiths 5 3
Christopher Brislen (appointed 21 October 2022 and resigned 7 April 2023) it 3
Paal Broderick (resigned 26 Septeniber 2022) 0 l

Governance reviews.

Governor, and: Trustee appraigals are held on an annual bisis to review effectivencss actoss the Rourds.
Feedback from the appralea]b is used 1o help shape the training and development calendar for the following
deademic year. There is a termly training session for all GAET members on v.ubjeclse sucli as Safeguarding,
Admissions and BXelugions. plog académy. specific. triaining appropriate to cach govering body. o ncldltjon.ﬁ e
hold an annual (:AET Away Day for-all members to. look at Governor and Director roles, GAET s vision and
objectives and hosts guest speakers, The Trust's Governance Officer provides. governors and trustees with a
range of information régarding training and online resources 1o which we have aceess, We are subser ibing
merithers {o organigitions: including the National Governors Association. Governor L-Ledmlng and The Key,
Training records. are held centrally by the clerk.and are reviewed at individual appraisals to ensure attendance
and:that Gevernors are playing an-active part in théir personal training and development needs!

The Trust undertook.a. fult cxtcmal review of governance in Y2223 with the National Governors Association
{NGA) in order to further ensure the robustness of g governance. The headline of this repoit is “Great Academies
Educalion Trust has a strong and commitied trusi board, and governance has been-carefully orsanised 1o ensuie
that the three core functions are ¢overed at (rust board and’ LGC level”. This Teport also identified a number of
actions which are being reviewed with: the Trust Beard in order to ensure they arc-addréssed over. the next( 12
monihs.
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Great Academies Education Trust

Governance statement (continued)

Finance and Resources Committee

The. Finance -and Resources Comniittee is a sub- committee of the main Board of Trustees. lis purpose is o
oversee tinancial réporting. [n addition to the. I*mance Director, Khalida Kay is a certified accountant and wasa
member of the committee, . Attendarice at meetings in the year is as follows: Attendance at meetings. during the

vear was as follows:

N Meetings: Qut of a
Trustee attended. pussible
Frank Norris 5 5
Stephen Griffiths 5 5
Paul Jones, 5 5
Khalida Kay (resigned 19 July 2023 and appointed as co-opted trustee 19 5 3

July 2023)

Audit and Risk Committee

The Audit Committee is a sub-commiitee of the niain. Board of Trustees. Its pufpose is to oversee fisk

managemint and review and approve the audit activity, Attendante at. meetings in’ the. vear is as follows:
Attendance at meetings during the year was as follows:

Meelings: Outofa
Trustee attended possible
Stephen. Giritfiths 3 3
Paul Jones. 3 3
Khalida Kay (resigned l'_l.lﬁ-'_Ju'_I\y 2023 and appointed a5 co-opted trustee 19 3 3

Joly 2023)

Review of value for money

As accounting officer, the Chief Executive Officer Has responsibility for ensuring that the Acadenty Trust
delivers-good value in the use of public. resourees. The Accounting Officer under»mndq that value Ior money
refers to the Lducatronal and wider socictal outcomes achieved in return for the taxpaver resources received.

The Accounting Qfficer considers how ihie Multi Academy Trust's.use of its resources has pr ruvided good value

for money during each academic year, and reports to the Board of Truslees where value for money <an be
improved. including the use of henchmarking dita where availahle The Accounfing Officer for the Ad oy
Trust has-delivered improved value for money during the year by:

* Targeting resources to fucus on |mprmmﬂ ecducational results

The Multi Academy Trust regularly-reviews its statfing structure o ensure that staffing Jevely are appropriate to
support the delivery of the. curriculum, The on- going reduetion. in funding levels- has renewed the focus on
ensuiing that the right staff are in post to- drive improvement in the key areas. Although staff numbers have
teduced in-response- to budget pressures, more flexible and focused d(.plovmem of the remaining stalf has
enabled the Academy Trust w.continiie driving improvement.

* On-going review and challenge of all costs

The Multi Academy Trust has an cstablished coltyre. of chailenging alt requested spend - do-wé need 1o spend. is
there an alternative, more cost-effective: way of plowdlllf_ Havé we sccurcd. the best procurement deal? Theie is
a contintied facus through renegotiation of service contracts as they have:come.due, benchmarking and sharing
cost data acrogs the Mulii- Acadeniy Trist-and seeking ways to secure beiter deals Trust-wide:
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Great Academies Education Trust
Goevernance statement (continued)

The purpose of the System of Internal Control _

The system of internal control is desi gned'u) nnage risk 10 a reasonable level rather than o eliminate all #igk of
failure 1o achieve policics. -aims -and objectives; it-can therefore vnly provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance of effectiveness: The system of internal control is based on an ongoing provess designed o fdentify
and prioritise the tisks 1o the achievement of Academy. Trust policies. aims and objectives, to evalvate the
likelihood of those risks being realiscd and the impact should they be realised, and to manage '_r'h_em cificiently,
effectively and cconomically. The system of infernal control has been in place it Great Academics Bducation
Trust for the year ended 31 August 2023 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial
Statements.

Capacity te Handle Risk _
The Board of Tiustecs has revieived the key risks to which the academy trust iy exposed. togéther with the
operating, [inancial‘and coipliance controls that have been implemented 1o mitigate those risks. The Board of
Trustees is.of the view that there is a formal ongoing process for identi lying. cvaluating and mapaging the
academy trust’s significant risks that has been in plice for the year cnded 31 August 2023 and up 1o the date of
approval of ‘the annual teport and financial statements. This process i regularly reviewed by the Board of
Trustees.

The Risk and Control Framework

The Academy Trust’s system of internal financizl contrgl is bused on a tramework of regular management
information and administrative procedutss including the segregation of duties and a system of delegation and
accountabifity. In particular, it includes:

* comprehensive budgeting and: moniforing systems with an anmual budget and periodic financial reports
which are reviewed and agreed by the Board of Trustées:

-~ regular reviews by the Finance and Genetal Purposes. Comuiittee . of° feports which indicate financial
performance against the forecasts and of ma for purchiase plans. capital sworks and expenditure prozramimes;

v setting targels to measure financial and other perlormance:
« clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines:
+  delegation of authority and segregation of duties;

+  idemtitication and managemient of risks.

"The Board of Trustees has considered the need for 4 specific intérnal audit function and has appointed Jackson

Stephen LLP, to carry.out 2 programme of agreed upor procedures for thi 2022/23 finuncial year.
* 1o appoint Jackson Stephen LLP as internal auditoy

*  not to appoint an inteinal auditor, However the Trustees have appointcd Beever and Struthers, the: external

addiior, 10 pertorn: atditional checks

The reviewers auditor's role included giving advice on financial matters and performing a fange of" ¢hecks on'the
Academy Trost's financial systeims. The review focused on the:robustness of straiegic planning and budgeding,
The auditor repurted to the. Bogrd of Trustees: through the. finance and audit committee. on the operation of the
systemig ut control.

On a annual basis, the auditor Teports to the Board of Trustées, through. the -Audit and Risk Committes, on the
operation of the systems of control and on the discharge of the Board of Trustees’s financial responsibilities. On
an annual’ basis the duditor prepares-a summary report to the Commitiee outlining the arcas reviewed, key
findings, recoimmendations and conclisions to help the Committee consider aciions #nd assess year ‘on vear
Progress.

For the year ending 31 Avgust 2023, the agreed scheduole of work was delivered as planned with no vontrd|

issues arising from the work.
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Great Academies Eduecation Trust

Governance statement (continued)

Réview of Effectiveness
As Accounting OTficer. B Loughran, Chiel Executive Officer has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveriess
of the system of internal control. During the year in question the review hag been informed by

+ the work of the internal suditor Jackson:Stephen LLP:

»  the wotk ofthe exiernal auditor;

« the financial management and governance sclf-assessment process. or the scheol resource management
self-assesment tonl;

« the work of the executive manapers within the academiy trust who have tesponsibility for the-develépment
and maintenance. of the internal control framework.

The Accounting Officer Thas been advised of the implications of the tesult of théir review of the system of

internal control by the Audit Committee Finance and General Purpuses Committee and’ a plan o addresy

weaknesses atd ensure’ continuous improvement of the system is in place..

Approved by order of the members of thé Board of Trustees on 13 December 2023 éind stined:on its Behalfl by:-

B Loughran .

Chief Execuitive Cfficer






Great Academies Education Trast
Statement of regularity, propriety and compliance

As aceounting fticer-of Great Academies Fducation Trust | have considered my responsibility to notify the
-academy trust Board of Trustees and the Fdutation and Skills F unding- Agency (CSFA} of material irregularity,
mpropriety and non-compliance with terms and conditions of all funding; mcluding for estates safety and
managemenl, under the funding agreement between:the dcademy trust and the Secretary of State for Education,
As parf of my consideration I have had due regard to the tequirements of the Academy Trust Haridbook 2022,
inchuding responsibilities: for estates safety and management,

T confirm that 1.and the academy trust Board of Trustees are able 16 identify -any maiefial irregular or inipraper
use.of funds by the acadeiny trust, or material non-coinptiance with the terms and conditions of funding under
the academy trast's funding agreement and the: Academy Trusi Handbook 2022, '

I confirm that no instances of material firegularity. impropriety or funding non-complianceé have. been
discovered (o date. It any instances are-identified after the date of this, statenient,  these will be notified to the
Board of Trystecs and ESFA.,

B: Loughran, Clifef Executive Officer
Accounting officer

13.Décembeér 2023

Page 22






Great Academies Education Trusf
Statement of Trustees' Responsibilities

The Trustees {who are aiso the diréetors of the charitable company for the purposes. ot company law) are-

‘responsible for preparing the Trustees' réport and the tinancial statéments in accordance with the- Academies

Aceounts Direetion published by the Education and Skills Fundihg Agéncy, Upited Kingdom Accounting.
Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires- the Trustees to prepare tinancial statements for-each financial year: Under company law
thie Truslees must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied: that they give a true-and fair

‘view of the staté of-affairs of the chdritable company and of ifs incoming resources and application of resources,
ncluding its income.and expénditiire. Tor thal period. In preparing these financial slatements, ihe Truslees arc

required to:
*  select snitable aczounting policies arid apply them consistently;

*  observe the nmxethdds and principles in the-Charitics SORP-2015-and the Academies Accounts Direction 2022
o 2023

¢ ingke judgments and accounting estimates that arc feasonable and prudent;

« state whether applicable UK Accounting Staidards have been followed, subject to any material départures
disclosed and explainéd in the fifancial statements: and

« prepare the financial statements on the:going concern basis unless it is inappropriaie to presume that. the
charitable company will ¢entinue in business.

The Trustees are responsible for kéeping adequate dccovnting records that sre-sufficient to show and explain the

charitable company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuiacy ar any time the fidancial position of the

charitable” company and enable theni'to ensude that the financial statoments comply “with: the Companies Act
2006, They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charitable: company and hence for taking
rcasonablt steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregiilarities.

The Trustees are responsible for ensuring thal in its conduct and. eperation the charifable compaiy applies:
finaneial ‘and other controls. which conform with -the. rt.qmrcmcnt:: both of propricty and of good financial
management. They are also responsible for ensuring grams received from ESFA/DIE have been-applied for the

purposes intended.

The Trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial inforniation

included on the charitable company's wdmle Legislation in the Unm,d Kingdom governing the preparation and
disserination of Tinancial stalements may differ tons legislation in Dl]]L‘i’.jI.Il_".lb_diCl_.lU!]S.

Appzm j!,b}-ﬂvder f'the members of the Board on 13 Décember 2023 and signed 6n its behalt by
4:...

Pwl—l—mms.
Trustee
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Great Academies Education Trust

Independeént Auditoi’'s Report on the Financial Statements to the Members of Great
Academies Education Trust

Opinion

We have audited the financiil statemems of Great Acadermics Education Trust "the academy trust™ for the year
ended 31 August 2023, which comprise thie Statemient-of Financial Activities for the year ended 31 Angust 2023
(including Income and Expenditure Account), Balance Sheet vs at 31 August 2023, Stitement of Cash Flows for
the year ended 31 August 2023, and Notes. 10 the Fitiancial Statements, meluding a summary of significant
accounting policies. The financial reporting framework fhat has been applied in their preparation is applicable
law and United Kingdom Accounting ‘Standards, including: FRS 102 "The Financial Reporting Standard
applicable in the UK ‘and Republic of Treland” (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accowiting Praciiee) and
the Academies Accounts Direction 2022 to. 2023 issued by (he Education and Skills Funding Agericy.

In our opinion the findncial statements;

* give a tiue and fair view of the state of the Academy's affairs as at 31 Angust 2023 and of its incortiing
resources-and application of résources, ineluding income and expenditure, for the year thew ended; '

*  huve been properly prepared in accordance with United Kinhgdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice:
and.

* have beeén prepared in accordance with the requirements ‘of the Companies Act 2006 aid the Academies
Accounts Dircction 202210 2023 issued: by the Education and Skills Funding Apency.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with. Internatiomal Standards on. Auditing (UK (ISAs (UK}) and
applicable Taw. Our responsibilities. under those sian_durjd_s‘ are further described in the Auditor's respongibilities.
for the andit of the financial statements section of owr report, We are indépendent of the académy trust in
accordance with the ethical requircinents that are relevant to. our audit of the financial statgments in the UK,
including the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have filfilled our other eth ical responsibilitics in accordance with
these requirements. We-believe tliat the audit evidence we Have obtéined is sulficient and appropriaic in_provide,
a-basis for our opinion, '

Conclusions relating to going concern

In au_{’iifing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Trustces” use of'the weing concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate:

Bascd on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertdinties relating to evests or
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Academy's ability to continue as.a
going concern’Jor'a period of at least twelve. months from when the original Tinancial stalements were aulliorised
for issuc,

Cur responsibilities and the responsibilitics of the Trustees with respect ta going condern are desctibed in the
rélevant sections of this seport.

Opinion en other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion. based vnthe work undériaken in the.course of the audi:

« the information given in the Trustees” report( ingorpurating the Strategic Reportj for the financial year for
which the financial stateihents are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

* the Strategic Report has been prepared in a¢cordance with applicable legal requirements.
Matters on whichi we are required to report by exception

In thi¢ Hight of our knowledge and anderstanding:of the company and-its environment obtained in the course of
the audit, w¢ have not identified material misstatements in the Strategic Repuort.

We have nothing 1o report in respect of the following matrers: where the Compantes. Act 2006 requires us. i
report W you i) in our opinion:.

Pape 24







Great Academies Education Trust

Independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements to the Members of Great
Academies Education Trust {continued)

*  adequate accounting records have not been kept, or retumns adeduate for our audit have not been received
fronr branches.not visited by us; or

= the financial siatements.are not in.agreemen witli the accaunting reedrds and returhs: or

+ cerfain disclosures of Trustees remuneration specified by law are nét made: or-
» we have not received all i‘he'inﬂmnation and explanationg we reqiite for our audir,

Responsibilities of Trusteés

As explained more fully in the Statement of Trustees' Responsibilities set out on page 23, the Trustees are

responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and. for being satisfied that they give atrue and fair
view, and for such internal control a5 the Trustees determing is.nécessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or efror,

In preparing the financial statements, the Trustecs are responsible for assessing the Academy's ability to

continue as a gding concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going.voncern ond using the going

concern basis-of ntcounting unless the Trustees either intend-to liquidate-the Acadery or to cease operations, or

have no realistic alternative but to do 50,

Anditor Respunsibiiities-fbr.the-.audit uf the financial statements:

'O_ur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance aboui whether the financial staterents as a whole are free

from material misstatement, whether due mff‘raud orerror, and to issue an auditor's report that includes. our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assuranice, but is not a guarantée that an audit conducted in
aecordance with ISAs (WK) will always deteet a materizl misstatement when it exists. Misstalements can arise
fiom fraud or error-and are-considered material if, individually or in the aggregate. they could reasonably . be
eapected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial sfalements,

]
Lh
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Great Acadeniies Education Trust

Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements to the Members of Great
Academies Education Trust (continued)

The exient to which the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities including fraud

Our approach to identifying and asscssing the risks of material misstatement ‘in respect of irregularities.
including fraud and non-compliance with laws and regulations, was-as follows:

~ the engagement pariner ensured that the engagement team colleclively had the. appropriate competence,
capabilities and skills 1o identify or récognise non-compliance with applicable laws angd regulations,

* we idéntifled the laws and regulations-applicable to the academy thirough discussions with trustées and other
management, and from our knowledge and experience of the-academy sector.

+ we-focused oun -specific laws and regulations-which we considered may have a direct materiaf effect ou the
financial -statements or the operations ‘of the academy, including the Companies Act 2006, the Cha_ri'ries Act
2011, and the Academies Accounts Direction 2022 to 2023 and Academies Trust Handbook 2022, both issued
by the Ediication and Skills Funding Agency,

* we assessed the extent.of compliance with the laws and regulations identified above {hrough making erigquirics
of managemisrit and inspecling legal ¢orrespondénce.

+.identified laws and regulations were communicated within the audit 1eam regularly. and the team remained

alert 10 instances of non-compliance throighout the audit.

We assessed the susceptibility of the academy’s financial statements fo material misslatement, including

-obtaining an understanding of how fraud might oceur,. by;,

= making enquiries .of mianagement as fo where they considered there was susceptibility to fraud, their

knowledge of aclual, suspected and alleged fraud.

- considering the internal controls. in place 10 miligaie risks of fraud and non-compliance witle laws nd
rezulatlions.

To address the risk of fraud through management bias and override of vontrols, we:

» performed analytical ‘procedures on material balatces for which robust, substantive analytical procedures have

‘beert undértaken to identify any unusual or-unexpected refationslips.

« tested journal entries to identify unuduil transactions.

» invéstigated the rationale behind significont or unusual fransactions.

‘Theré are inherent lirhitations in our audit proeedures deseribed above. The riwre removed that Taws and

regulations ‘are from financial transactions, the less likely if is thut we wounld become aware of non-compliance.
Aunditing standards also Hmit the uudit procedures required to identify non-compliance with laws and regulations
to enquiry -of the directors and other manugement and the ingpection of regulatory and legal correspendence, if
iy, . :

A further deseription of our responsibilities for the ‘audit of the financial staténiems is located on the Financial
Reporting Council's website at www fre.orguk/auditorsresponsibilitics. This description. formis part of our
auditor's report. '
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Great Academies Education Trust

Independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements to. the Members of Great
Academies Education Trust (continued)

This report is made solely to the academy trust's members. as # body, in accordance with Chapteér 3 of Part 16 of
the Campanies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so thar we might state to the acadeniy trust's
members tliose matters we are reéquired fo staté to them in an auditor’s-report and tor no other purpose. To the
firllest extent permitted by law, we do not acéept or assume rcwponsiblllw to anyone other than the academy
trust andthe academy trust’s membets as a.body, for our audit work. for this report, or for the. opinions we have
formed.

Andrew J McL afélf'{ Senior Statutory Audimr_}_
Forand on behialf of Beever and Struthers. Statitory Auditor

One Express

1 George Leigh Street
Manchester

M4 SDL

DL i ORI
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Great Academies Education Trust

Independent Reporting Accountant's Assurance Report.on Regularity to Great
Academies Education Trust and the Education and Skills Funding Agency

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated and furfher 1o the- reqmrements of the Education
and Skills Funding Agenicy (ESFA) as included in the Academies Accounts. Dlrectlon 2022 ro 2023, we have

‘cartied out.an engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether the e*(pcndnurc dmbursed and income

reéceived-by Great Academies Education Trust during the petibd 1 September 2022 (6 31 August 2023 have been
applied o lhe purposes identified by Parliament-and the financial fransactions. contorm io. the aufliorities which

govern them.

This repost is made solely t6 Great Academies Bducation Trust and the ESFA in accordance with the terms of

‘our engdgemerit letter, Our work has bieen nnderaken so that we ray state to Great Academies Edueation Trist
and the ESFA those matters we are requited 16 stafe in'd report and tor no other purpose. To-the fullest extent

permitied by law, we do-not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than Great Acadeniies Edtication

Trust and the ESFA, for our work, for thl'i report, or tor the:conclusion we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of the Board of Trustees -s--accountmgrofhce‘r and the reporting accountant

The accounting officer is-responsible, under the requnementa of the'Board of Trustees's funding agreemeit with
the Secrétary of Stafe for Education dated and the Academy Trust Handbook, extant from | September-2022, tor
ensuring that expenditure disbursed and fncome received is.applied for the purposes intended by Parliament and
the financial tranisactions conform to the‘authorities which govern them.

Our respensibilities for this engagemeiit are. ¢stablished in the United Kingdom by our profession’s ethical

guidance and are to obtain limited assurance ‘and report in atcordance with our engagement letter and the

requirements of the Academics Accounts Direction 2022 to 2023. We report to you whether anything has come
1o our attention in carryinig out our work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure ‘disbirsed and

income received-during the year from | September 2022 fo 31 August 2023 have not beeniapplied. to purposes
intended by Parliament or that the financial nansactlom do not conform to the authorities which govern them,

Approach

We conducted our engagement in accordunce with the Framework and Guide for Extgrnial Auntlitors and
Reporting Accountant of Academy Trusts issued by ESFA. We perfurmed a limited assurance engagement as
detined in our engugement letter.

The objective ol a limited assurance. engagement’ is to perform such procedures as to-abtain information -and
explapationy in order 1o provide us with sufficient appropriale evidenve to express a negalive conclusion. on
regularity,

A limited assurance. ¢ngagement is fnore. limited in scope than a reasonabls sssurance engagenmient and
consequently does ot enable us ta obtain assurance fhat we would become aware of ajl significant maiters that
might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement. Aceardingly, we do not-express a pusitive opinion,

Qur engagement includes examination, on g test-hasis, of evidence rélevant 16 the regularity and propriety of the

e 1dem<, trust's ancome.and w\pt.ndltur\..

The'work undertsken to draw to our conclusion includes:
*  Review and testing of financial systems of internal control
> Sample testing of transactions

= [Dscussions with management







Great Academies Education Trust

Independent Reporting Accountant’s Assurance Report on Regularity to Great.
Academies Education Trust and the Education and Skills Funding Agency (continued)

Conclusion

I the course of our work. nothing has come: to our gttention which suggests thay in ‘ali material respects the
expetiditure disbursed and income received during ihe year fromi 1 September 2022 to 31 August 2023 has tiot
been applied o purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do not confurm 1o the authorities
which govern them,

Andrew J McLaren _
Forand on behalf of Beever and Strutliers, Chartered Accountants

One Express.

| George Leigh Street
Manchester

M4 5DL
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‘Great Academies Education Trust

Statement of Financial Activities for the Year Ended 31 August 2023
(including Income and Expenditure Ac¢courit)

Restricted Rcstri_c'_tc'd
Enrestricted General Fixed Asset  Endowment 2022/23

Funds ‘Funds Funds. Funds Total

Note £ 000 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000, £000
Income and endowments from:
Donations and capital
grants 2 2 - 229 - 231
Othier trading activities 4 677 239 - - o916
{nvestménts 5 46 - - - 46
Charitahle detivities:
Funding for the Academy
tritst’s educational
operations 3 - 26,607 - - 26,667
Tearhing schools 27 - 456 - - 456
Totial 725 27,362 229 - 28,316
Expenditare ou:
Charitable-activities:
Academy trist educational
operations 7 550 26,942 1.640 - 29132
“Tedching Schobls 27 - 470 - - 470
Total 550 27412 1.640 - 29,602
Net income/{expenditure) 175 (50} {1.411) - (1,286}
Transfers between funds {847 t1,466) 2313 - -
Other recognised gains
and losses
Actoarial gains on defined
‘Benctit pension schemes 25 - 1,54] - - 1,541
Net movement in _
(deficit)/funds {672) 25 002 - 235
Reconciliztion of funds
Tatal Jutids brought
torward af | September _ _
2022 4,113 120 . 57,542 2,000 63,775
Total funds caried _ _ _
forward at 31 August 2023 3.441 145 58444 2,000 64,030
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Great Academies Education Trust

Statement of Financial Activities for the Year Ended 31 Augst 2022

(including Income and Expenditure Account)

Rgstrictcd- Restricted _
Unrestricted General Fix__c_d Asset  Endowment 2021/22
Funds Funds Funds Funds Total
Note £ 000 £00b £.000 £000 £ 000
Income and endowments from:
Donafions and capital
STty _ 2 - - 1,298 - 1,298
Orher trading activilies 4 567 111 - - 6_78_'
Investments 3 G - - - s
Charitable nitivitics:
Funding for the Academy
trust's educational _
operations 3 - 24518 - - 24,515
Teaching schools - 430, - - 430
Total 573 25.056 1:298 - 26,927
Expenditure on:
Charitable activities:
Academy trust eduscational
operations 7 - 27.132 1,943 - 29.075.
Tedching schools 27 - 365 - - 365
‘Nel incomefespenditure) 573 (2,441} (645} - (2,513}
Transfers between funds {922) - 922 - -
Other recognised gains
and losses _
Actuarial gains on defined
benelit pension schiemes 25 - 17,702 - - 17702
Net movement in
{deficityfunds {344y 15.261 277 ~ 15.189
‘Reconciliation-of funde
Total funds/(deficit)
brought forward at 1 ) _ _
September 2021 4,462 (15,1313 57,263 2.000. 4,586
Total funds carriéd _ _
forward at 31 August 2022 4.11¥ 120 57.542 2,000 63.775
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Great Academies Education Trust

(Registration number: (6237630)
Balance Sheet a§ at 31 August 2023

2023 2022
Note £ 000 £ (00
Fixed asséts
Tangible assefs 12 38444 57.542
Current assets
Deblory 13 4,004 3,046
Cash af bank and in hand 4,537 5,217
Investmerits 2,097 2,088
10,638 10,351
Liabilities
Creditors: Amounts fzii]in_g due within one.vear (5,052} {2,970)
‘Net ewrrent assets 5,386 7.381
Tutal assets tess éirrent Liahilities 63,030 64,923
Ner assets excluding pension asset 64,030 64.923
Defiried benefit pension schieme Tiability 25 - (1,148}
Total net assets 64030 63,775
Fuhnds of the Academy:
Restricted funds
Restricted gencral fund 15 143 1,268
Restricted fixed asset fund 15 58,444 37.542-
Pension reserve 15 - (1.148}
58,589 57,662
Unrestricted funds
Unrestricted generdl fiind 15. 3441 4,113
Endowment funds
Permanent fiind 15 2.000 2000
Total funds_ 64,030 63,775

The financial statements on pages 30 to 58 were approved by the Trustees. and authorised for issue on- 13
Decembi 23and signed on their behall by:

—_
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Great Academies Educatioh Trust

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 August 2023

2023 2022
Note £000 £ (0
Cash _ﬂn__w_s- i'_:_‘um operating activities

1,594 (405§
Cash flows from investing activities 21 (2,206Y {1.863)
Change in cash and cash equivalents in the vear (672} {2:358)
Cash and cash-equivalents af 1 September 7,306 9,664
Cash.and cash cquivalents at 31 August el 6,634 7.306
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Greaf Academies Education Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2023

I Accounting policies

Great Academies Education Trust is-a charitable company. The address of its principal pla¢e of business is
given on page-! and the nature of ifs operations are sét out in fhe trusices! report,

A suromary -of the principal accounting policies adopted {which have been applied consistently, except where:

noted), judgements.and key sources of cstiimation ungeriainly, is set oGt below.

Basis of preparation

‘The fimancial statements of the academy- trust, which is 4 public beiiefit entity’ under’ FRS 102, have been

prepared under.the historical cost convention in accordance-with the Financial Reporting Standard Applicablein’

the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102), the Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Stiterient of

Recommended Practice applicable. to chatities preparing. iheir accounts in accordance with the Fisuncial
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Républic of Irefind (ERS 102} (Charities SORP (FRS 102)), the
‘Academies Accounls Direction 2022 (5 2023 issued by ESFA. the Charitiés Act 2011 and the Companies Act
2006,

Gaing concern _

The trustces assess whéther the use «of going concem Is appropriate i¢.. whether there’ are any material
uncertainties related fo events or conditions that may - cast significant doubt on the ability of the company (o
continue as a going concern. The trustees make this assessment in respect of a pertod of at least éne year from
the date of authorisation for issue of the finaricial statements and Rave concluded that_the academy- trust hias
adeguate resources. to rontinue in Gperatiorial existence for the foreseedble future and there are no maferial
uheertainties about the academy trust’s ability to continue aé 2 going congern, thus they continué adopt e
going concern basis of accounling in preparing lhc.'ﬁn'amial slatements,

Income
All ‘ncoming resources are recognised when the academy trust has entitlement to the funds, the receipt is

probuble and the amount can be measured réliably,

Grinty

Giants. are included - in- the Statement of Financial Activities -on a receivable basis, The balince of -income
received for specific purposes bt nol expended during (he period is.shown in the relevant funds oa-the balance
sheet. Where incomé is received in advance of meeting any performance-related conditions, theré is not
unconditional -cntitlement to the income and its recognition is deférred and included ‘in creditors as deferred
income until the' performance-related conditions are met. Where entitlamient occurs before income is received,
the‘income s agerned,

General Annual Grant is recognised in fill in the' Statement of Financial Activides in the year for which it js
receivable and ariy abatement in tespect of the period is deducted from incomie dnd recognised as a liabilily.

Clapital grants are recogniséd it full when there is an unconditional entitlement to the grant, Unspent amounts of

capital grants are reflected in the balance sheet in- (he restricted fixed asset fund. Capital granis are spent on
capital projects in line with the lerms snd condilions of the geant Capifal grants are recognised when there is
entitlement and are nut deferred over the Tife of the asset on which they are expended.
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Great Academics Education TFrust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August-2023- (continued)

1 Accounting policies (continued)y

Danations

Donations ure recognised on a receivable. basis (where there are ho petformance-related tonditions} where the
receipt is probable and the smount can be reliably measured.

Orlier inéome

Other- income, including the hire of facilities. is recognised in the perind it is receivable und to fhe extent the
acaderny trust his provided the goods orservices.

Expenditure

Expenditure is recognised once. there is alegal of constructive obligation to transter cconomic bencfit to a:third
party, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in sefticimént and the amount of the
obligation can be measured reliahly. Expenditure is classificd by activity. The cosis of-each activity are made up
of thé total of direct costs and shared costs. inéluding support costs involved in undertaking each activity. Direct
costs atteibulable to a single’activity are allocated directly to that activily. Shaved costs which contribute to more
than one activity and support costs which are not attributable to. i single activity are apportioned between those
activities on a’ basj’s consistent with the use of resoutces. Central staff costs are allocated on the basis of time
spent. and depreciation charges allocated on the portion of the asset’s usc.

All resources- expended are inclusive of irrecoverable VAT,

Expenditure on raising finids

This. includes ali expenditire incurred b_v the. agadeémy st to raise funds for s charitable purposes and
inciudes costs of all fundraising activities events aid non-charifable:trading.

Churitable activities

These are costs incurred on the academy trost’s educational operations, including support: costs and costs
‘relating to'the governance of the academy trust apportioned to charitable acnvities.,

“Fangible fixed assets,
Assets costing £500 or miore arg-cupitalised as uingible fived asscts and are carried 4t cost, net of depreciation
and any provision for impairment,.

Where tangiblé fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants. cither from the government or
from the private secter; fhey are included in the Balence Shect at cost and depreciaiid ovier their expecied useul
economic life: Where there are specific condilions atlached to the [iiding. fequiring the continued use of the
asset, the related grants are Credited to a restricted Tixed asset fund'in the Statement of Finanicial Activities and
varied forward in the Balance Sheet, Depreciation on the relevant assets is charged direcily to the restricted
fixed asset fund in the Statement of Financial Activitiés. Where tangiblé fixed assets have been-acquired with
unrestricted funds, depreciation on such assets'is charged to thé tnrestricted fund,

Depreciation is provided-on all tangible fixed assets other than f_rcehold land and assets under constraction,. ut
rates caleulated 16 write off’ the cost of each asset on a straight-lTine basis over ity expected useful life, per the
table below. '

A review for impairment of a fixed assct is carried out if events or chatiges in citcumstances indicate that ihe
carrying value of any fixed asset may not he recoverable. Shortfalls between the. carrving vatue. of fixed assets
and their recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments. Impairment losses are recognised ih the Statement
of Financial Activities. '
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Great Academies Education Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2023 (continued)

1 Accounting pulic_ii:s .(c_n_nti_nued}'

Asset class. Depreciation method and rate
Leaschold Larid {189,

Leasehold Buildings 2% - 20%

Fixtures, Fittings and Equipment 0% - 33%

‘Computer Equipment 20% - 33%

Liabilitics

Liabilities are recognised whén there isian obligation at-the balance sheet date as a result of a. past event, it is
probable that-a transfe of eoonemiv benefiv will be required i settlement, and the amount of the setflement can
be estimated reliably. Liabilities are rccogm‘-.ed at the :amount that the acddemy trust anticipates it will pay to
settle the debt or the amount it has received as advanced payments for the Loods ot serviced it must provide.

Provisions

Provisions are chgmsed when. the academy trust has an obhgdtmn at the reporting date as u tesult of a past
event which it is-probable will résult in the transfer of cconomic benefits and the obligation can be estimated
reliably,

Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the amounts tequired to setile tlie obligation. Where the efféct of
the time value of nioney is material, the provision is based on thepresent value of those amourits. discounted at
the pre-tax discount rate that reflects the risks specific to the: liability, The unwinding of the discount s
recognised within interest payable- and klmllar charues,

Leased assetfs
Rentals vnder operating leases are charged on a-straight-ling basis over (he lease teffy.

Financial Instiuments
The academy frust only holds basic financial insiruments: as defined ‘in FRS 102. The hnanuai assets -and
financiat liabilities of the dcadémy trust and their measurement basis arens follows:

Fiancial dsséts - trade and other debtors are basic financial instrumenis and ar¢ debt instruments easured at
amortised cost as detailed in note 13, Prepayments afe Aot financial mstlumcntx Amounts due to the charity’s
wholly-owned subsidiary aré held at face value less any: impairment..

Cashi.at bank - s classified ad a basic financial instrument .and is measured at face value.

Financial liabilities - trade créditors. mecrnals  and other creditors are financial umnument«. and are measured al
amartised cost wd detaiied in notg 14, ‘Tuxation anid svcial SCUuriy arc not Imimlcd in fhe Mnancial hstrumens

disclosure definition. Deferred income is not deemed 1o be a financial liability. as the cash settlement has.
already taken place and (here is.an obligation to deliver.services rather than cash. or. another financial insteuient.
Amotints die 1o chirity’s wholly owned suhsidiary are held at face value less any inipairment,

Taxation
The academy trust is considered ta pags-the tests set out in Parggraph | Schedule  of the Finance Act 2016 and
thercfore it mecets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes,

Accordingly, the academy trust i3 potentially. exempt froni axation in réspect af income or capital gains
received within categories covered by Chapter 3 Part 11 of the Cotporation Tax Act 2010.or Section 256 of the
Taxation of Clargeable Gains Act 1992, 1o the extent’ that such income of gains are applied exclusively to
charitable purposes..
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Great Academies Education Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements: for the Year Ended 31 Aﬁgu’_st 2023 (continued)

I Accounting policies {continued)

Pension benefifs
‘Retirement benefits 1o employees of the Academy Trust are provided: by the Teachers' Pension Scheme {TPS")
and fhe :Local Governmen( Pension Scheme (*LGPS’}). These are defined benefil schemes. The TPS is an

unfunded scheme and contributions arc calculated se as.to spread the cost.of pensions over employces® working
lives with the Academy Trust in'such a way that the pension.cost is a substantially level percentage of current

‘and future pengionable payroll. The cantributions aré determined by the Government Actuary on the basis-of

quadrennia] valiations using a prospective unit credit method. As stateéd in the notes i@ the financial stalements,
the TPS is a muln -smployer scheme and there is insifficient inforimation available to use defined benefit
aLL()LlI]tmL’, The TIPS is therefore treated as a defined contribution scliene for: acéounting - purposes and-the
contributions. recognised in the.period to which they relate.

The LGPS is a funded schéme and the assets.dre held separately from those of theé Academy Trust in separate

trustee administered fands, Pension scheme assefs aré measured at fuir valie ghd liabilitics are’ measured on an

actuarial basis using (he projected vhil eredil method and discovnted at-a rate equivalent 1o the curren! rate of
retirn on a4 high quality corporate’ bond of equivalent term. and curreney to the liabilitics, The actuarial
viluations are obtained at léast triennially and are updated at each balance sheet date. The amounts charged to
operating surplus are the’ current service costs and the costs of scheme- mtmductmm benefit changes,

settlements and curtailments, They are iricluded us. part of staff costs as incurred, Net interest on the. net. defined

‘benefit liability/asset is also recognised it the Statemeni of Financial Activities and comprises.the interest cost

on the defined benefit obligation and interest income on the scheme assets, calculated by ml.ﬂtlplylm= the, fair
value of the scheme assets -at the beginning of the period by the rate used 1o discount the benetit obligations. The
difference between the interest income o (he scheme ‘asscts and the actual rewirn -on. the sclienic assers is
fecogmised in ‘other récognised gains-and losses,

Actuarial gains-and losses are recognised immediately.in other recognised gaing and Tosses:

Fund accounting
Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used. towards ‘mecting any of the charitable
obijects:of the ']C"ldLIUV trust at the dtscuhon of the trustees:

Restricted fixed psset funds are resources which- are to be applied to specific capital purposes imposed by the

Education and Skills Funding Agency/Department for Education/sponsoriother {unders where the. asset acquired

or created is held for.a specific purpose.

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received with restrictions imposed by the
Tunder/doner and inglude granis from the Educalion and Skills Funding Agency/Depattment for Education.:

Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgement
Egtimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other luctors,
ncluding expectations of fiture events that are believed to be reasonuble under the circumstances.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August. 2023 (continued)

1 Accounting policies (continued)

Critical ncconnting estimatés-and assumptions

The academy: trust makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimiates
and assumptions, will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual resuits. The estimates.and assumptions that
have a significant risk of causing & material-adjustment to-the cairying amounts of assets and liabilities w ithiny
the next financial year afé diseussed below.

The. present value of the Local Goverminent Pension Scheme - defined benefit liability depends on a mimber of
factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumplions. The assumptions used in
determining the net cost {income) for pensions include the discount rare. Any changes inthese assumptions,
which are disclosed in note 25, will impact-the carrying amount of the pension liability. Furthermore a roll
forward approach which: pr-:)j ects results from the Jatest thll actuarial valuation performed at 31 March 2016 has
been used by the achiary in valuing the. pensions liability at 31/08/2022. Any differences betiveen the figures
derived from the roli forward approach and a thll actuarial vahiation- would impact on the catrying amount of
the pension liability,

Critical areas of judgenient

None

Agengy accounting

Tlie academy triist acts as an agent in’ distributing 16-19 bursary funds from ESFA. Payrents recéived from
ESFA andsubisequent dishurserients to students are excéluded from the statement of financial activities u$ the
trust .does not have contrel over the charitable apphcatmn of the funds. The trust can use up t6 (% of the
allocation towards iis own 'td[l’]ll’]lSll’ﬂIIOn costs and this is recognised in the statement oflmant:tal aclivitics. The
fundsireeeived and paid and any balances held are disclosed in note-.

2 Donations and capital grants

Restricted
Unrestricted- Fixed Assct 2022/23 2021/22
Funds Funds Total Total
£ 000 £ 000 £ 040 £ 000
Capital grants . 229 229. 1,298
hher danatians 2 - 2 "
2 229 23] 1,29%

The iiicomeé from domations aiid capital yrants was £230.761 (2022; £1.208, 353'%) whicl: was allocated belween
the hmds as fullows; £2.327 unrestricted funds {2022: (£64)), £Nil restricted funds {2022 ENil), £228,434
rulnuud fixed asset ﬁmds {2(} £1.298.447) and £Ni} endowment finds (2022; £Nilh
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2023 (cnntinue‘d)

3 Funding for the Academy Trust’s educational operations

DfE/ESFA revenue. grants

General Annual Grant (GAG)

Pupil Premium

Others.

Universal infant Free School Meals

Free School Meals Supplementary: Grant
Mainsiream. Grant

Récovery Premium

School Led Tutoring

PE & Sports Grant

Other government
grants

Local Avthority Grants
Non-government.
grants and other income
Other Grants

RPA Claiims

Covid-19 additional funding (DIE/ESFA)

Other DIE/ESFA Covid-19 funding

Total garanis

Restricted 2022423 2021722
Tunds Total Total
£000 £000 £000

22,502 22500 21276
1,547 1,547 1,400
A1 51, 329

16 & 319
05 705, -
351 351 .
377 377 -
174 174 -

19 19 -
25,742 25,742 23,524
627 627 633
228 228 111
70 70 -
208 208 111}

- - 247
26,667 26,667 24,515
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2023 (continwed)

4 Other trading activities

Restricted
Unrestricted General 2022/23% 2021722

Funds Funds Tatal Total

£ 000 £000 £ 000 £.000
Hire of facililics R . 78 79
Cutering income 341 - 541 458
Othér Income 3% 239 207 47
677 239 916 678

The income from other trading activities was £9135,745(2022::£677,319} which. was 2llocated belween the funds
as follows: £677,344 unrestricted funds (2022: £567,168), £238,401 restricted funds (2022: £110,151), £Nil
restricted fixed asset funds (2022: £Nil} and £Nil endowment funds (2022 £NiD.

5 Investment income

Unrestricted 2022/23 2021722
funds; Total Totai
£ 000 £ 000 £000
Investments 46 46 b

The income fron: other trading activities was £46,179 (?{)27* £3.967) which was allocated Between the funds as
follows; £46.179 unrestricted funds {2022: £3, 967). £Nil restricted funds (2022: £N}l), ENil restricted fixed asset
funds (7{)2.’1. ENilyand £Nil éndownient finds (20225 ENIL.

6 Expenditure

Non Pay Expendifure

_ 2022423 2021/22
Staft costs Premises Othér ¢osts. Total Total
~ £000 £ 000 £000 £ 000 £ 000
Academy's
educational
operations
Direct costs 17,072 - 1,735 {8,807 19,072
Alloeated support
costy 4,555 4,022 1748 | '(J,_3 25 10,053
Teaching sehool
hub
“Teaching school
hub - Direci costs- 62 - 103 165 83
“Teuching school
hub - Allocated
support costs 12 - 293 305 282
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‘Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2023 (continued)

6 Espenditure (continued)

Non Pay Expenditure

2022723 2821722
“Staff costs Premises Other costs Total Total
£ 000 £000 £000, £ 000 £000
21,701 4022 3879 29,602 29,440
Net income/(expenditure) for the year includes: _
2022723 2021722
£000 £000
Operating {ease rentals 77 28
Depreciation 1,639 1,943
Frés payable 10 auditor --audit. 24 19
- other audir services b 5
Net intefest on defined pension lability 56 292
7 Charitable activities
2023 2022
£ 000 £ 000
Direct costs - éducational operations. 18.807 19,022
Support casts - cducativnal operations 10,325 13,653
29,132 29,075
Teaching Sthool
Teaching school hub 470 365
Teaching Educational 2023 2022
School operations Total Total
£ 000 £ (00 £ 000 £ 000
Analysis of support costs
Support siaffcosts - 4,555 4,555 5,548
Depreciation - 1,640 1.640° 427
Technology costs - 222 222 238
Premises costs - 2,382 2,382 1,823
Legal costs: - 214 314 160
Other support caists - 1.282 1,282 1.420
Governance costs, _ - 30 30 37
Twotal support cosis -~ 1,325 10,325 10,053
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8 Staff

Staft costs

Staff costs during the vear were:

Wages and salaiies

Sociat sceurity costs

Operating casts of detined benefit pension schemes

Ageney stalt costs
Staff restructuring costs

Staff restructuring costs comprise:

‘Redundancy payments

Severance payments

Spécial stafi severance payments

2023 2022
£ 000 £000
15,189 14,655
1606 1.470
3,609 4,799
20,404 20,024
1,204 1,159
21,701 22,086
2022/23 2021/22
£ 000 £ 008
3 1
- 2
3 3

Tneluded in s1aff restructuting cosis are nen-stalutory/fnon-contraciual severance payitients totalling £Nil {2022:-

£2,564). Individually, the payments were:
Non-staiutory payments  £Nil

Non-contractual payments £Nil
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Great Academies Education Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2023 {continued).

8§ Staff (continued)

Higlier paid staff

The number of employecs whose émployeé benefits {excluding employer pension costs and employer national
msumnw Lonmbutloan excecded £60.000 was:
2022/23: 2021722
No No

£60,001 - £70,000
£70,000 - £80,000
£80,001 - £90.000
£50,001 - £100,000

— e N R & 2o
k= e b E 00

£110.604 - £120,000
£130,001 - £140,000 - 1
£140,001 - £150,000- 1 -

Kev management personnel

"The key management personnel of the academy trust comprise the trustees aind the senjor manageimient tean as.

ligted on page 1. The total amount of kéy management pC]‘;OImtl benefits {including employer pension
contributions and cmployer national insirance contribuiions) received by key management personnel far their
services 1o the acadcmv wust was £966,430 (2022; £41},227).

‘Staff numbers

The average mimber of persons-employed by the academy trust during the year was as (ollows:

2023 2022
No No
Teachers. 2358 229
Administration and support 300 318
Management 5 7
542 554
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2023 (continued)

9 Central services

The academy trust has provided the;"r'dl!d'\\«ting central services 1o its avadensics during the year:
+ Human Resources

*  Finarice

* Legal

* Gipvernance

¢ Behool Intprovemerit

= lealih & Safety

* Central funding via intervention funds

* Health Cashback Plan

The acadenty trust charges. for these services on the following basts:

The Academy Trost charges for these services as a percentage of iticome and is currently chavged at 5.5% plus

2.% of Recovery premiuin (2022: 5.5%): The actual amounts charged-in 2023 were as.follows:

The aetoal amounts charged during the vear were as tollows:

2022/23 2021722
A M £ ono
Greal Academy Ashion 491 442
Middicton Technology Schoo) 467 431
Copley Academy 245 216
Silvér Springs Primary Academy 108 102
1.308 1.191

0 Related party transaetions - trustees' remuneration and expetses

-One or more (nls_let:s' has been paid remuneraticn .or has reéceived other benefits from emplovment with the
academy trust. The principal and other staft trustees only. réceive remuncration in respeet of services they
provide undertaking the roles of principal and staff members under their contracts of eimployment, and not in
Tespoct of their role ay wusees.

No trustees receivéd remurnicration in'the year from the teust.

During the year ended 31 August 2023 travel and subsistence expenses totilling £Nil (2022 - £68) were
reimbursed.or paid directly 1o trustees (2022 - 1),

Ollier related party transactions involving the trustees are-set out in note 20.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2023 (continued)

11 Trustees' and officers’ insurance

In accordance with normal commercial practice the Academy has purchased insimanee 1o protect Lrustees and
officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions: dgecurring Whilst on Academy business.

The academy trust has opied into the Department for Education’s risk protection arfangement (RPA), an
alternative (o fnsurance where UK government furids cover losses that:arise; This scheine protects trustees and
officers from claims ariging from negligent acts, errors or mhissions oceurring whilst on Acadény business, and
prevides cover up Lo £10,000,000. Il"is-.nm-pns_sibln_z- to quantify the trustees and officers indemmnity element from

the overall cost of the RPA scheme. The cost of this insurance is included jn the total insurance cost.

12 Tangible fixed assets

Leasehald

land and Furniture and Computer

buildings- equipment equipment Total

£0400 £.004 £000 £ 000

Cost
At’l September 2022 67,4560 2,439 1,984 71.879
Additions 2,866 220 255 2,541
At 31 August 2023 69,522 2,659 2,239, 74,420
Depreciation
At 1 September 2022 Hreay 1,820 1,507 14,337
Churge. for the year 1,189 231 219 1,639
At 31 August 2023 12,179 2051 1,746 15,976
Net buok value
At 31 August 2023 57,343 a8 493 538,444
AU3T August 2022 36,466 619 457 57542
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13 Debtors.

2023 222
_ £ 000 £000
Trade debtors 11 40
VAT recoverable 2,508 1,358
‘Prepayments and accined income 1,395 1648
4,004 3046
14 Creditors: ainéunts falling duc within one year
2023 2022
£ 000 £ 000
Trade creditors 1,112 #38
‘Other faxation and social security 363 157
Other cieditors 274 97
Pension scheme cteditor 381 334
Accruals and deferred income. 2,922 1,344
5,052 2970
2023 2022
£ 000 £ 00
.Dcferrcc_l income,
Deferred income af 1 September 2022 47 203
Resources déferred in the period 134 47
Amounts releasced from previous periods (473 {203)
Deferred income at 31 August 2023 T34 47

Deferred inicome at 31 August 2023. relates to Universal Free School Meals, Trip Income and unspent revenue
grants.
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15 Funds

Restricted funds

Resrj-'icfed.-gizrne,_-'crf_f_i;m."s
General- Annnal Grant {GA
Pupii Premium

Other THE/ESFA:

‘Other Local Authority Grants
Othier non governmient grants
Teaching school

IFSM

ther Trading Activities

Restricted fived asset funds
Inherited on conversion
DfE Group. capital grants
Transfer from reserves

Pensian reserve fiinds
Pension reserve

Total restricted funds
Unvestricted general funds
Cieneral funds

Total unrestrigted funds
Endowment funds-

Permanent etdmvment fundy
Rustricted endowment funed

Total endowment funds

Total funds

Balance at
1 Guains, Balance at
September Incoming Résvirrees losses and 31 August
2022 resources expended transfers. 2023
£ 400 £000 £ 004 £ 000 £000
1,109 22,502 (22,145) (1,466) -
- 1.547 (1.5347) - -
- 1,677 (1,677) - -
- 627 [_'62'-’?'} - -
- 208 1298) - -
139 436 {470 - 145
. 16 {16) - -
- 235 {239) - -
33834 - (1.484) - 52.350
A8 229 {156} - 3781
- - - 2,313 2,313
{1.148) - (393) 1,541 -
57.662 27.501 §29.052) 2,388 58,589
4113 725 (5507 {847} 3,441
4,113 725 {550} (847 3,441
2.000 - - - 2.000
2,000 - - - 2,000
63,775 28316 (29.602) 1,541 64.030

Comparative information in respeet of the preced ing pertod isas follows:
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15 Funds (continued)

Restricted fiunds

Restricted gendral funds
General Aunual Grant (GAG)
Pupil Premium

Other DE/ESFA

Otlier Lo_c‘af At_lthﬂﬁiy CGirants
Qther DIE/ESFA Covid-19
finding.

Othernon governiment grants
Teaching school

QOther restricted finds
UIESM.

Other Trading Activities.
Restricted fixed asset fimds
Inheri_te__d on conyersion

DFE Group capitil grints
Pe:m_i dn-reserve fiinds

Pension reserve

Total restricted funds
Unrestricted cenerdl finds
General funds

Total uniestricted funds
Endowment funds

Permaiient endowment funds

Restricted éndownient fund
Tatal endowment Tunds.

Tatal funds

‘Balancieat 1 Gains,  Balance at
Septembeér Incoiming”  Resources losses and- 31 August
2021 resources expended transfers. 2022
£ 000, £000 £ (00 £ 000 £000

1,364 21276 (21,331) - 1,100

{12y 1,400 (1.388) - -

(122) 529 {407) - -

- 633 (633) - -

- 247 (247 - -

7 11 (118) - -

19 430 (394 - 159

331 - (331). - -

- 119 {319) - -

- 110 (110) - -

53,681 - (1.847) - 53 834

1.584 1.298 (96) 922, 3,708
(16.828) - (2,022 17,702 (1,148}

42,124 26,333 {29,439) 18,624 57.662
4,462 573 (923 4113

4462 573 - 19223 4,113

2,000 - - - 2,000

2.000 - - - 2,000

48,586 26926 (29,439) 17,702 63,775

Page 48






Great Academies Education Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2023 (continued)

15 Funds (continued)

Ristoric income generated Fom endowed investments, donations: from previous related parties and Middicton
Technology School Fund balance on conversion have been credited to unrestricted funds.

Restricted incoming resources must be used by the Academy Trust to deliver and improve educational
provision. The restricted fixed asset fund includes Devolved Formula Capital Grant and land and buildings,

Where assets have been purchased with o cost in excess of capital fundipg received in the year, fands have been
transflerred from the general reserve to the fixed asset reserve. In addition, where speéific projects have been
funded from reserves, the value. of lhu.c projects has been transferred from. vnrestricted reserves to general
reserves,

Under the funding':_}gfééinc:n't with the Secretary of State, the Academy Trust was not subject to a Timit on the
amount of GAG that it could carry forward at 31 August- 2023,

Total funds analysis by academy

Fund balances at 31 August 2023 were allocated as follows:

2023 2022

£ (0 £ 000
Great Acadery Ashton 274 622
Middlelon Technalogy School 3,009, 4,089
Copley Academy (328) {1203
Silver Springs Primary Academy 496 657
Central services 145 133
Total befote fixed assets-and pension resérve 3,586 5,381
Restricfed fixed asset fund 58,444, 57.542
Pension Teserve - {1,148y
Endowment Fund 2,000 2000
Total 64,030 63,7758

Copley Acadewy js carrving a net deficil of £338k (2021: £120k) as a result of historieally falling pupil

numbers.and a number ofteacliing siaff on- pay protection agreements. The academy are devr:lopllw o deficit
regovery plin i eider 19 vliminate the deficii balaince, Wwhich is focuscd arsutd vost Suvings aml sirong pupil
growth. The Ac.ademyTru:.l is supporting Copley during the recovery period.
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15 Funds {continued)

Total cost analysis by academy

Expenditure ingurred by tach acadety during the vear wai'as follows:

Teaching
‘and
eduiational Other _ Other costs:
support support Educational ‘(excluding Total
staff costs  staff costs supplies -depreciation) 2023
£ 00 £:000 £ bog £ 000 £ 000
Copley Academy 3324 502 305 914 5,045
Grear Academy Ashiton 6,112 1,140 684 2214 10,150
Middieton Technology
School ' 5713 1,150 509 1,776 9,148
Silver Springs. Primary
Academy o 1,835 324 132 316 2,607
Central services 643 442 113 189 1387
Academy Trust 17,627 3,558 1,743 5409 28.337
Comparative infoimation in fespect olfhe préceding period i as follows:
‘Teaching
and
educational Cther Other . costs
support support Educational {excluding Total
staft costs staffcosts supplics  depreciation) 2022
£ 000. £ 000 £000 £ 000 £ 000
Copley Academy 3102 433 254 424 4,233
Great-Academy Ashton G.024 AD17 564 1,870 9475
Middleton Technology
School 3,546 1,021 750 1,639 8.956
Silver Springs Primary
Academy 1807 203 172 317 2,548
Central services 478 355 72 242 1,344,
Academy Trust 16,954 3.339 1,812 4,492 26,597
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16 An alysis of n_ei asseis between funds

Fund balances at 31 August 2023 are represented by

Restricted
_ Restrictéd Fixed
Unrestricted General Asset  Endowment Total
Funds: Funds Funds ‘Funds Funds
£ Q00 £000 £:000 £:000 £ 00
‘Tangible fixed asscts - - 55 444 - 38.344
Current assets 3441 5,197 - 2,000 10,63¢
Current lighilities - (5.052) - - {5,052)
Tata] net assets 3,441 145 38,444 2,000 64,030
Comparative information in respect of the preceding period is as follows:
‘Restricted
Restricted Fixed
Unrestricted Genceral Asset  Endowment Total
Fuixds ‘Finds Funds Funds Funds
£ 000 £ 4000 £ 0o £:000 £ 000
Tangible fixed assets - - 57,542 - 57,542
‘Current assets 4113 4.238 - 2,000 10,351
Curredt labilities - 12.970) - - (2,970)
Pension scheme Tiability - {1.14%) - - (1,148)
Totalnet assets 4,113 120 57,542 2,000 63.775

17 School Sports Partnership (SSP)

School Sports Partnership are groups of schools working fogether to develop PE and sport. uppnmlmtm for

young peéople, In 2010 Grent Académy Ashton bCLdmC host to Tameside SSP comprising.a partnership
development manager, sevén local Secendary and thirty feur primiary schools. Additionally, the academy hosted

other smaller community sporting projects. 2011 was the final year for this activity in ity previous form, as
funding streams fm schoals sports activities have changed, However the SSP. Dévelopment Manager terains in
post and accesses available funding- in order to -continue these attwmes These. sporting projeets received

inveme of £23.3533 (Z022:£09.475) aid:spent £70,041 in the. Year (2022 £63,214), The associated éxpenditire is-

excluded from the academy's income and expenditure account on the ba‘:lw that the Academy.acts only as host to

these projects. The balance contained within Other & reditors. for SSP was £75,810 (2022: £122:318),

18 Capital commitments

Coniracted for, bul not provided in the financial statements:

2023

000

369

2022
£ 000

1,878
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19 Long-termi commitments, ineludifyg operating leases

Opciating leases

At 31 August 2023 the toial of the Academy trust's future minimum lease paymients under non-cancellable
operating leases was:

2023 2022

£ 000 000

Amounts due withiin enc vear 16 20
Amounts due befween one and five-years 45 20
61 40

Long-terms conunitments (other contractual commitinentsy

At 31 August 2023 the tatal of the Acadeiy trust's. future minimum payments under other contractual
romnutments was;

2023 2022

£000 £ 000

Ambunts due-wilhin one year 673 539
Amopunts Cﬁue between one and five years 2,892 2,523
Amounts gdue after five years 6.776 5,877
10,341 8,939

A non-canicellable contract exists for the Greai- Academy Ashiten in the fornt of ‘aniual chacpes to cover the
service costs associated with the deil\u} of hard facility managémest activity which is charged by the focal
authority, who pass on the ¢osts charged by the Local Enterprise Partncrqlup vehicle tasked with management of!
“tie contraet. The commitment amounti are subjeet to an increase which iz linked to the retail price index. The
costs incurred in year are recognised wiilhin the SOFA,
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20 Reconciliation of net expenditure to net ¢ash inflow/(outflow) from operdting activities

2022/23 202122
£ (K0 £ 000
Net expenditure- (1,286) (2.513)
Depreciation 1,639 1,943
Capital grants from DIE and other cipital income (229} {1,298)
Interest receivable (463 {6).
Defined bénefit pension scheme cost fess contributions payable (1,580 1,730
‘Diefined benefit pension seheme finance cost 56 292
Decreased{increase) in debtors b3y (7813
Increase increditors 2,082 138
Net.cash provided by/(used i) Operating Activities 1,594 {495y
21 Cash flowsfrom investing activities
2022/23 2021722
£ 000 £ 080
Dividends, interest and rents from investments -'_J,'G 6
‘Purchase of tangible fixed assets 25413 (3,168).
-Capital fimding received from sparsors and otliers 234 1,298
Net cash used.in investing activitics {2,366) (1,864)
22 Analysis of cash and cash eqyivalenfs
2023 2022
£ 000 £ 000
Cash in hand and-at bank 4,537 5,217
Short term déposits -2:.097 2,088
Total cash and cash equivalerits 6,634 7,305
23 Analysis of changesin nct debt
At
Septémber At 3T Augast
2022 Cash flows 2023
£000 £000 £000
Cash 5217 (680) 4.537
Cash equivalents 2,088 9 2007
7,308 (671 6.634
Total 7,305 (671 6,634
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24 Member liability

Each member of the charitable. company undertakes to contribitte o the assets of the charitable company in the'
event of it being wound: up while they are a.member; of within one yéar after they cease to bic a member. such-
amount as may be requined, not exceeding £10, for the debts and labilities contracted before they ceased fo bea
merither,

.25 Pension and similar obligations
The academy trust's employees belong to two prmcnpal pension. schemes: the Teachers’ Pension. Schene

England and Wales. tTPS} for acaderiic and refated stall: and the Lacal (rovunmcnt Pension SLllme (LGPS)
for nori-teaching staff, which is managed by . Both are multi-employer defined benefit schemes.

The. latest actuarial valuation-of the TPS- related to the period ended 31 March 2006 and of the LGPS to the
period ended 31 Mareh 2019

Contributions amounting to.£380.803 (2022:£333.592) were payable 10 the schemes at 31 August 2023 and are’
included within creditors.

“Teachers’ Pension Scheme

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contribuiory, defined bencfit scheme; gaverned by the
Teachers’ Pension Scheme Regulitions 2014, Mcmbu‘blup is autoanatic. for wachers in academics Al teachers
have the optitn e opt-out of the TPS following enrolment.

The TPS.is an unfunded schieme to which both menber.and employer makes contributions, as a percentage-of
sdlary - these contributions aré ctedited 10 the Exchequer, Retirement and other pension benefits are paid by
public-fuinds provided by Patliamieit,
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2023 (continued)

25 Pension and similar obligations (continued}
Valuation of tiie Teachers’ Pension Scheme

The. Government Acluary, using normal actuarial principles, copducts a formal actuarial review of the TPS in
accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014 published by
HM Treéasuiy every 4 years. The ainy of the review is to specity the level of future contributions, Actuarial
scheme valuations dre dependent on assumptions about the valic of future costs, design of benefits and mahy
-other fuctors. The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was carriedoutas at 31 March 2020. The vahiation report
was -published by tlie Department for Edication on 30 October 2023, The key elements of thé valuation and
subsequent consultalion are:

~ employer contribution rates set-at 28:68% of pensionable pay (including 2.0,08% administration levy)

* total schieme tabilitics (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of futuce: benefits) for service to
.lhe'c{TeclI\e date of £262.000 million and notiona! assets: {estimated fulure contributions together with the.
notional investments held at the valuation.date) of £222,200 million, giving a notiohal past service deficil of
£39.800 million

= the SCAPE discount rate; set by HMT, is used to determine the notional investntent retum. The current:
SCAPE rate is 1.7%: above the rate-of CPI, and is based on the Office for Budget Responsibility’s forecast for
long-termi GDP growth,

The nhext va_lu'atibn result is due to'be j mpleménted frome 1 April 2027,
The employer's pension costs paid to TPS in the periad amounted 1o £2,314 948 (2022: £2 218,213,

A copy of the viluation report and supporting doéumentation is.on the Teachers® Pensions website.
(hrtps:/Avireew teacherspensions.co,uk/Mmeéws/employers/202 34 0/valuation-resultagpx)

Under the definitions set out iin FRS 102, the TPS is an unfunded: multi- —employer pension sclieme. The academy
st has accounted for its contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined contribution scheme. The academy
Arust has set out above the information availdble on the scheme.

Local government pension schemes

The LGPS 1s a-funded defined-benefit scheme; with he assets held in separate trustee-administered. funds. The
total contribution made for the year ended 31 August 2023 was E1.209,000 (2022 - £1.130.000), of which

Cmpluytrs contributions totalled £938:000 {2022 - -£859.00M and cmployees' n.onrrlbutmm totalied £29] 000.'
("W];«... - £27100G). The agreed contribution raes for foture years are 1901 w0 194 per cent for emplovers and 3 -
5 per cenl Tor employecs Thu scheme is managed by Grealer Mancliester Pension Fund ..

Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State-for Educanon to 4 guarantee that, the even of
an acsdemy trust closure,. outstanding Local Govermment Pension Scheme fiabilities would be met by the
Department tor Education. The.gudrantee come into force on: 18 July 2013 and on 21 luly 2622, the Dcpamm.n[
for Education reaffirmed its commitment 1o the guarantee, with a parliamentary minute published on GOV.UK.
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Great Academies Education Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2023 (continued)

25 Peansion and similar obligations {continued)

Principal actuarial assumptions

Rate ofincrease in salaries
Rale of increase for pensions inpaymerit/inflation
Discount rafe for schenie Habilities

The current. mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for futuré improvements in the mortality rates.

‘The assumied life-expeclations on retirement age 65 are:

Retiring today

Males retiring today
Females retiring today
Retiring in 20 years
Males retiring in 20 years
Females retiring i 20 vears

Bensifivity analysis

‘Discount rate -0.1%4.
Mortality assamption ~ | year ingrease
‘CPI rate +00.1%,

‘The academy's share ofthe agsets in‘the $cheme ere:
Equities
Governmént bonds-

Pro perty
Cash and other liquid assets

Tatal market value of.'-asse_'ls

The actusl retum on sehiem assits was £4.922.000 (2022 - £281.000.

“Puge 56:

2023

%
3.80
3.000
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2022
%
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Great Academies Education Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2023 (¢ontinued):

25 Pension and similar ohligations {(continued)

Amounts recognised in the statement of tinancial activities

2023722 2022/21
£ 000 £ 000
Current service cost {1,265) {2,589
Tnferest incomie 940 348
Interest cost (996) (640)
Benefit changes, gain/(loss) on curtailmeit and ‘gainf{ioss) on settlement 3,982 -
Total amount récognized in i SOFA 2661 (2,881)
‘Changes in the present value of defined beneﬁf.oblig_ations“'c_rc as follows: _
2023722 20241
£ 000 £000
At start of period 22.907 37.546
‘Current service cosi 1,265. 2,589
[riterest cost 996 640
Employee-contributions 2491 271
Actuarial (gain)Aoss {4.375) {17.769).
Benetits paid (453 {(370)
At 31 August 20,631 22,907
Changes in the fair value of academy's share of schieme aséets:
202322 2022421
£ 000 £ 004
At staft of periad 20759 20,718
I[nterest income. ' 940 148
Actuarial gain/(loss) (393) 67)
E'm]jlo_ver-(..‘on'lﬁbuti_ons. 928 859 .
Emplovee Gontributions 391 271
Benefits paid (453) (370)
At 31 Aupudt 23,072 21.759

Considering the. impact of "asset seiling” and thal (he pension scheme surplus canhot be recovered, the balunce
of the net defined pension scheme asset £2,441 000 has been written off to the statement of financial activities,
The net asset/liability is' thercfore Nil. This treatment is in accordance with FRS102 section 28. The actnarial
gain recognised in the year is réduced by the valie of llie nel pension asset of £2.441.000 Fom £3.982,000

£1.541.000.

26 Related party transactions

Owing to the naturc of the academy trust and the composition of the board of Trustees being. drawn from local
public and private sector organisations. transsctions may tuke place with organisations in which the trustees

have an inferest. The following relatéd party transactions fook place i the financial period.
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27 Teaching school trading account

2423

£ 006G
Income
Direct Income
Other-income 456
Other Incoms
Total Income 456
Expenditure
Direct costs.
Direct statf costs {61}
Other direct costs (103)
Total direct cosls (164
Other costs
Support §faff costs (12
Other support costs {294).
Tolal sther ¢osts (306)
Total Expenditire {470)
Deficit from dll sources. {14)
Teaching school balances at 1 Seplember 2022 159
Teaching school balances.at 31 August 2023 143

P e
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